
TOWN OF VERNON 
Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) 

Virtual Meeting Notice & Agenda  
Thursday, January 20, 2022, 7:30 PM  

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call by Roland Klee, Chairman 
  
2. Administrative Actions/Requests  
 
 2.1 Election of Officers 2022 
 

2.2 Amendment/Adoption of Agenda - Additional business to be considered under agenda 
item #6 “Other Business” requires Commission vote. 

 
2.3 Approval of the Minutes from the December 16, 2021 
 

3. New Application(s) for receipt, if any: 
 

3.1 PZ-2022-01, 26 Union St. An Application of Amy Javarauckas for a Special Permit pursuant to 
Section 4.23.5.16 and Section 24.5.21 of the Zoning Regulations to allow a Tattoo Shop at 26 
Union St. (Tax Map 23, Block 106, Parcel 15). The Parcel is zoned Downtown Business & 
Residential (DBR) and is in the Rockville Village Overlay District. 
 
3.2 PZ-2022-02, 95 Hartford Tpke. CT Golf Land LLC has requested modifications to an approved 
Site Plan of Development and special permits for site grading, new construction, additions, and 
other activities on property located at 95 Hartford Tpke. (Assessor ID: Map 1, Block 158, Parcel 
00095). 

 
4. Public Hearing(s) and Action on Applications: 
  

4.1 PZ-2021-19, Village at Naek Road. An Application of Rashid Hamid for a Site Plan and Special 
Permits to allow a +-70-unit multi-family development on multiple parcels located at 291 and 
293 Talcottville Rd. (Assessor ID: Map 3 Block 4 Parcels 9A & 9E) and at 27, 32, 37, 38, and 46 
Naek Rd. (Assessor ID: Map 3 Block 4 Parcels 008-8, 7,4, 6, 5). Specials Permits requested from 
the Planned Development Zone-Gerber Farm zoning district (PDZ) include Section 4.24.4.3.2 
(multi-family units); 4.24.3.15.1 (more than 40 off street parking spaces); 4.24.4.3.15.2 
(proposed structures within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section 4.24.4.3.15.3 (proposed 
parking within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section 4.24.4.3.15.4 (aggregate square 
footage in excess of 25,000 sq. ft.); Section 4.24.4.3.15.9 (a development having less than the 
required yards). 

 
 
 

Zoom Meeting Information 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6149852850?pwd=NUZwVkEwWkRxS1EweC94cFNHVUxBdz09 

Meeting ID: 614 985 2850 Passcode: h72Vs7 
By Phone: 646 876 9923 Meeting ID: 614 985 2850 Passcode: 786221 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6149852850?pwd=NUZwVkEwWkRxS1EweC94cFNHVUxBdz09


5. 8-24 Referrals, If any 
 

5.1 36 Cubles St.  
 
6. Other Business/Discussion 
 

6.1 Affordable Housing Plan Introduction 
 
7. Adjournment   
          
 
          Roland Klee, Chairman  
                            Planning & Zoning Commission 



DRAFT MINUTES 



TOWN OF VERNON 
Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) 

Meeting Notice 
Thursday, December 2, 2021 7:30 PM  

Town Hall--14 Park Place, 3rd Floor Council Chambers 
Vernon, CT 

 
Draft Minutes 

 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call by Roland Klee, Chairman 7:30 PM. 

• Regular members present: Roland Klee, Robin Lockwood, Mike Mitchell, Iris Mullan, and 
Susan Reudgen 
• Alternate Member: Carl Bard sitting for Jesse Schoolnik 
• Absent Members: Joseph Miller, Jesse Schoolnik and Mike Baum 
• Staff present: George McGregor, Town Planner 
• Recording secretary: Jill Rocco 

  
2. Administrative Actions/Requests  
 

2.1 Amendment/Adoption of Agenda - Additional business to be considered under agenda 
item #7 “Other Business” requires Commission vote 

 
Robin Lockwood MOVED to ADOPT the agenda. Susan Reudgen seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
2.2 Approval of the Minutes from the December 2, 2021.  
 
Susan Reudgen MOVED to APPROVE the minutes from December 2, 2021. Iris Mullan seconded 
and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

3. New Application(s) for receipt, if any: 
 
 NONE 
 
4. Public Hearing(s) and Action on Applications 

 
4.1  PZ-2021-18, 234 Talcottville Rd. An Application of Pritam, LLC c/o Jagdev Toor for a 

Special Permit Use for the sale of alcoholic beverages (package store) at 234 Talcottville 
Rd. (Assessor’s ID: Map 10, Block 15R, Parcel 40G). 

 
 Chairman Roland Klee explained the rules of the Public Hearing. 
 Town Planner George McGregor explained that the applicant will explain details of the 

application. 
 Legal notice was published in the Journal Inquirer on December 4th & December 11th.  
 Dorian R. Famiglietti of Kahan, Kerensky, Capossela LLP, 45 Hartford Tpke, Vernon, CT 

06066, Attorney for the Applicant Jagdev Toor, spoke in detail in regards to the application. 
 Commission asked questions. 
 Attorney Dorian Famiglietti responded. 



 Chairman Roland Klee asked if anyone would like to speak in regards to the application. 
 No one spoke in favor of. 
 No one spoke in opposition. 

 
 Robin Lockwood MOVED to CLOSE the Public Hearing at 7:45 PM. Susan Reudgen seconded and 
 the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Susan Reudgen MOVED that the Planning and Zoning Commission APPROVE PZ-2021-18, a 
 special permit for the selling of alcoholic beverages at 234 Talcottville Rd., based upon a 
 finding that the special permit meets the relevant general special permit criteria of 17.3.1 and 
 exceeds the distance separation requirement of Section 17.1.2. and subject to the following 
 condition of approval: 
 
 1. Prior to commencing any sale of alcohol from the Premises, the owner/applicant shall 
 provide documentation to the Planning Department demonstrating that it has relinquished 
 its liquor license for property at 212 Talcottville Road and a new liquor license for 234 
 Talcottville Road has been obtained. 
  
 Robin Lockwood seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
5. 8-24 Referrals, If any 
 
 NONE 
  
6. Other Business/Discussion  
 
 Susan Reudgen informed the commission that this was her last meeting, saying thank you and goodbye 
 to everyone. 
 Discussion ensued. 
 
7. Adjournment   
         
 Mike Mitchell MOVED to ADJOURN at 7:51 PM.  Susan Reudgen seconded and the motion carried 
 unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
Jill Rocco 
Recording Secretary 



APPLICATION 

For Receipt 

 











APPLICATION 

For Receipt 

 





































APPLICATION 

1 

 



Rashid Hamid

President

Naek Construction Co., Inc. 

27 Naek Road

Vernon, CT  06066

860-875-1895 860-872-3251

rashidnaek@aol.com

The Rashid Hamid Family, LLP

c/o Naek Construction Company, Inc. 

27 Naek Road

Vernon, CT  06066

860-875-1895 860-872-3251

rashidnaek@aol.com



291 and 293 Talcottville Road and 26, 32, 37, 38, and 46 Naek Road

See attachment

See attachment

X

PDZ-Gerber Farm Area

X

X

X



Village at Naek Road

Eric Peterson, P.E., P.L.S.

Engineer and Surveyor for Owner and Applicant 

Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC

178 Hartford Turnpike

Tolland, CT  06084

860-871-0808

epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com

860-875-2086



X

X

Development of 70 multi-family townhouse dwellings with infrastructure and amenities

X

X

X

Site preparation, grading, and installation of utilities for construction of the 70

dwellings in 17 buildings, with driveways, sidewalks, lighting, storm drainage, open space for
public purpose, scenic area displaying natural water feature, landscaped gardens, benches 
with scenic view, walking trail, and other related improvements. 



X

See attachment





1 
 

TOWN OF VERNON PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION (PZC) 
SUPPLEMENT TO APPLICATION 

 
III.  PROPERTY 

 
Address: 291 Talcottville Road 
 
Assessor’s ID Code: Map #03  Block #0004  Lot/Parcel #0009A 
 
Land Record Reference to Deed Description: Volume 2592  Page 218 
 
Address: 293 Talcottville Road 
 
Assessor’s ID Code: Map #03  Block #0004  Lot/Parcel #0009E 
 
Land Record Reference to Deed Description: Volume 2592  Page 218 
 
Address: 26 Naek Road 
 
Assessor’s ID Code: Map #03  Block #0004  Lot/Parcel #008-8 
 
Land Record Reference to Deed Description: Volume 2097  Page 54 
 
Address: 32 Naek Road 
 
Assessor’s ID Code: Map #03  Block #0004  Lot/Parcel #008-7 
 
Land Record Reference to Deed Description: Volume 2097  Page 54 
 
Address: 37 Naek Road 
 
Assessor’s ID Code: Map #03  Block #0004  Lot/Parcel #008-4 
 
Land Record Reference to Deed Description: Volume 2097  Page 54 
 
Address: 38 Naek Road 
 
Assessor’s ID Code: Map #03  Block #0004  Lot/Parcel #008-6 
 
Land Record Reference to Deed Description: Volume 2097  Page 54 
 
Address: 46 Naek Road 
 
Assessor’s ID Code: Map #03  Block #0004  Lot/Parcel #008-5 
 
Land Record Reference to Deed Description: Volume 2097  Page 54 



2 
 

 
VI.  APPROVALS REQUESTED 

 
X Other Special Permit(s). Cite ZR Section and describe activity:  
 
Section 4.24.4.1 for multi-family dwellings; Section 4.24.4.3.15.1 for more than 40 off-
street parking spaces; Section 4.24.4.3.15.2 for proposed structures within 200 feet of 
other residential structures outside of the development; Section 4.24.4.3.15.4 for 
aggregate floor area of structures more than 25,000 square feet; and Section 
4.24.4.3.15.9 for reduction in yard areas for three or more community amenities.  
 
 































Stewart Appraisal Services 
Real Estate Appraiser & Consultant 

268 Lucky Ribbon Lane 
Holly Springs, NC 27540 

Formerly: 58 Hartford Turnpike in Tolland, CT 06084 
Robert G. Stewart                        (860) 604-6899                stewartappraisal@comcast.net 

 
 

November 30, 2021 
 
Rashid Hamid 
The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership 
27 Naek Road 
Vernon, CT 06066 
 
Re: Village at Naek Road 
 Vernon, Connecticut 
 
Dear Mr. Hamid: 
 
As requested, I have completed a Fiscal Impact Analysis for the above noted proposed apartment 
complex.  You are currently seeking a Special Permit for 70 apartment units.  This fiscal impact analysis 
is to determine what impact the proposed apartment complex will have on the Town of Vernon’s budget.  
The analysis involved estimating the new income and expenses to the Town of Vernon when the 
complex is built.  This analysis is completed in conformance with the professional methodology for 
completing a Fiscal Impact Analysis. 
 
The scope of work started with me reviewing my July 30, 2019 Fiscal Impact Study for the same 
property when you were seeking a zone change to develop the site with 76 condominium units.  The 
project has since been modified to 70 apartment units and that report was updated to reflect the changes 
as well as the current Town budget, assessments, and mill rate.  For the 2019 Impact Study the Town 
budget was reviewed and the subject’s impact was discussed with Jeff O’Neill, the Vernon Finance 
Officer and Treasurer.  Jeff O’Neill was not available  to discuss these 2021 updates with me.  Those 
discussions included the costs the Town has with existing condominium and apartment complexes.  For 
both the 2019 Impact Study and this update, the property and motor vehicle assessments were discussed 
with Christine Clarke, the Vernon Deputy Assessor.  The number of students in Vernon and information 
to project the number of students that will be in the subject units was obtained by Shaun Gately, the 
Vernon Economic Development Coordinator from the Vernon Education Superintendent Dr. Joseph 
Macary’s office to maintain confidentiality.  The information provided for this study is the number of 
children registered for school in various apartment complexes in Vernon.  The entire project was 
discussed with various members of the owner’s design team as well as with George McGregor, the 
Vernon Town Planner.  Other Vernon public records were reviewed and used.   



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 2  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 
The initial Cost-Revenue Analysis (Fiscal Impact) study when the Gerber Farm Area was rezoned was 
completed for the Town of Vernon by Karen Godin in March of 1996.  I reviewed that document when I 
completed several Fiscal Impact Studies for various sections of the active adult living Quail Hollow 
complex plus The Mansions apartments in the PDZ – Gerber Farm Area in the 1990’s and 2004, as well 
as one for the subject property in 2019.  I used those reports, following the same format and 
methodology, completing this report which outlines my analyses and conclusions for the proposed 
Village at Naek Road apartment complex. 
 
A brief summary of my analysis is that new income to the Town is derived from real estate property 
taxes and motor vehicles taxes.  New expenses considered were an increase in almost all town expenses 
increasing them on a new per person basis.  In my analysis, all town expenses, except for refuse 
collection & disposal, recycling, and leaf collection (which the Town does not provide to apartment 
complexes) were projected to increase with the amount estimated on a per person basis.  New education 
expenses were estimated on a per student basis.  The net result of my analysis is a net gain to the Town 
of Vernon of $215,000 per year when construction of the proposed 70 apartment units is completed. 
 
First the income to the Town was considered.  The income is from two items, real estate taxes and motor 
vehicle taxes.  To determine the taxes from real estate, the assessment of the to-be-built apartment 
buildings was estimated.  This was done by looking at the assessments of existing similar apartment 
buildings in Vernon and a discussion with Christine Clarke, the Deputy Assessor. 
 
The proposed apartment complex will be at the end and on both sides of Naek Road off Talcottville 
Road.  The 21.6 acres is zoned PDZ- Gerber Farm and a Special Permit is being requested.  The 
apartments will be 70 townhouse units in 18 buildings.  There are two floor plans consisting of end units 
and interior units.  The difference is in the size of the unit and the number of garages.  The end units 
contain 1,616 square feet, an attached 2 car garage, and a side patio.  The interior units contain 1,460 
square feet, an attached 1 car garage, and a rear deck or patio.  All the units have a foyer, kitchen / 
dining area, great room, two bedrooms and two full bathrooms on the first floor.  Both have a second 
floor with a loft that has two closets and overlooks the kitchen and great room.  The end units have a 
cathedral ceiling in the foyer and the interior units have a cathedral ceiling in the front bedrooms.  All 
the buildings will have solar panels for the individual unit electricity including the heat and air 
conditioning.  There will be 36 end units and 34 interior units for the total of 70 apartment units.   
 
To estimate the assessment, the proposed apartment complex, the subject was compared to the current 
assessment of similar existing apartment complexes in Vernon.  The comparison was limited to newer 
and similar quality complexes.  Specifically, the Mansions at Hockanum Crossing (75 & 95 Hockanum 
Boulevard) and The Grand Lofts.  It is to be noted that for assessment purposes, the Grand Lofts is three 
different properties.  Grand Lofts I (1031 Hartford Turnpike), Grand Lofts II (1085 Hartford Turnpike), 
and Grand Lofts III (1100 Hartford Turnpike).   Grand Lofts II was not used in the assessment analysis 
as it is two buildings plus the common recreation center and rental office.  These same complexes were 
used throughout this analysis for other data needed to apply to the subject. 
 
The table on the next page outlines the current (2020 Grand List) assessment for each of these and the 
subject is at the bottom.  As the individual components and design features are not broken down on the 
public Assessor’s card, my analysis was done on the per square foot of finished apartment units for each 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 3  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 
complex.  This ignores garages, decks, and patios, but includes common buildings in all the complexes.  
This is a slight, with minimal impact, generalization for the subject assessment value.  It is to be noted 
that Vernon is completing a revaluation for the 2021 Grand List but the values are not yet completed.    
 
Address 
Complex 

Assessment Total square 
feet 

Assessment 
per sq ft 

Year 
Built 

Number of Units 
Average unit sq ft 

1100 Hartford Turnpike 
Grand Lofts III 

$22,462,880 317,648 sq ft $70.72 2016 254 units 
1,250 sq ft 

1031 Hartford Turnpike 
Grand Lofts I 

$5,977,010 92,128 sq ft $64.81 2013 66 units 
1,396 sq ft 

75 & 95 Hockanum Blvd 
The Mansions 

$57,129,510 804,372 sq ft $71.02 2001  714 units 
1,127 sq ft 

Naek Road 
End unit 

 58,176 sq ft  New 36 units 
1,616 sq ft 

Naek Road 
Interior unit 

 49,640 sq ft  New 34 units 
1,460 sq ft 

 
The subject units will be new, are larger on average, all will have a garage and will be of similar quality.  
Based on the above three comparable assessments, a per square foot rate of $71.00 was concluded.  
Therefore: 
  End unit 1,616 sq ft @ $71.00 psf = $114,736 x 36 units = $4,130,496 
  Interior unit 1,460 sq ft @ $71.00 psf = $103,660 x 34 units = $3,524,440 
                                                     Total Assessment of proposed complex            $7,654,936  
       
 
 
Next the motor vehicle taxes were considered.  To estimate how many cars there will be, the number of 
cars and the average assessment in the existing same three apartment complexes, plus Grand Lofts II, in 
Vernon used for the real estate assessments were considered.  The car count and average assessment was 
extracted from the Vernon 2020 Grand List by address.  Cars often take longer to complete the address 
change so only the units with a car registered were counted for each complex. 
 
Address 
Complex 

# of cars # of units with 
cars 

 Cars per unit Average 
Assessment 

1100 Hartford Turnpike 
Grand Lofts III 

207 143 1.45 $9,960 

1031 Hartford Turnpike 
Grand Lofts I 

73 43 1.70 $9,912 

1085 Hartford Turnpike 
Grand Lofts II 

28 21 1.33 $9,603 

75 & 95 Hockanum Blvd 
The Mansions 

670 479 1.40 $10,657 

 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 4  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 
The subject planned units and complex are most similar (as to cars) to Grand Lofts I and The Mansions 
at Hockanum Crossing as both have garages at several (not all) units.  Based on these comparables, I 
concluded 1.55 cars per unit for the subject complex 
 
For the assessment, the average car 2020 Grand List assessment for all four of these complexes (978 
cars) of $10,424 was used.  If the subject units existed, the 2020 Grand List Assessment for all the motor 
vehicles in the subject complex would be: 
 
     70 units at 1.55 cars per unit = 108.5  
                             rounded to 109 
    x $10,424 average car assessment =  
                                   $1,136,216 motor vehicle assessments  
    
 
Next the new expenses to the Town of Vernon were estimated.  These expenses are based on past 
discussions with the Town Finance Officer including a 2019 discussion with Jeff O’Neill, the Finance 
Officer & Treasurer, about specific expenses that would change with the creation of the subject 
proposed complex, and my review of the current 2021 / 2021 budget.  Using the 2021 / 2022 budget is 
consistent with using the 2020 Grant List mill rate of 39.63 to estimate the income as this is the Grand 
List and mill rate that pays this year’s expenses. 
 
The Town total expenses were applied to the subject complex using the Per Capita Multiplier Fiscal 
Impact Method.  This method is the professionally recognized method and Jeff O’Neill agreed that the 
expenses considered can be considered on a per person basis. 
 
To develop the Per Capita Multiplier Method, the budget expenses need to be adjusted to reflect the 
portions attributable to only residential uses.  This was done using the same methodology Karen Godin 
did in her March 1996 Cost-Revenue Analysis for the Town of Vernon following The New 
Practitioner’s Guide to Fiscal Impact Analysis textbook by Burchell, Listokin & Dolphin.  In her report 
she calculated the share of total expenses for residential uses using the 1995 Grand List figures.  The 
following is an excerpt from her report but using the 2020 Grand List figures so as to reflect the current 
values.  It is to be noted that in this discussion “value” means “assessment” using the actual 2020 Grand 
List assessments.  It is also noted that the Guide consider apartments as commercial when calculating 
the ratio of residential to non-residential assessments per parcel. 
 
The next step is to assign a share of annual expenditures to existing nonresidential uses. 
 

1. Equalized nonresidential real property value 
Total local taxable equalized real property value 

 
   $490,298,610        
$1,581,926,520  = 0.3099 
 
Nonresidential uses (commercial, industrial, public utility, vacant land, use, & apartments) 
comprise 30.99% of the value of all locally taxable real property. 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 5  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 

2. Nonresidential real property value 
Nonresidential land parcels 
 
$490,298,610       
      1,032                     = $475,096 per nonresidential parcel 
 
The average value of a nonresidential property in Vernon is $475,096.  

 
3. Total local real property value 

Total local land parcels 
 
$1,581,926,520 
     10,126  = $156,224 per average parcel 
 
The average value of all properties in Vernon is $156,224 

 
4. Ratio of nonresidential to average parcel value 

 
$475,096 
$156,224    = 3.04  

 
The average value of local nonresidential property is 3.04 times the average value of all local property.   
 
When the average nonresidential property is valued 3.04 times the average local property, an inaccurate 
share of local costs is being allocated via the simple proportion of aggregate real property value. 
Empirical evidence has shown that this cost should be increased (Burchell, Listokin & Dolphin).  The 
refinement coefficient is the professionally recognized vehicle used to be sure that the municipal costs 
assigned to a certain sector are accurate.  The refinement coefficient is taken from Exhibit 9 in The New 
Practitioner’s Guide to Fiscal Impact Analysis (Burchell, Listokin & Dolphin - page 33), a copy of 
which is on the next page.   
 
The following is a short summary of how the refinement coefficient was determined as explained in The 
Fiscal Impact Handbook (Burchell & Listokin).  The x-axis shows a relationship between valuation of 
property average nonresidential to average local real property value with the upper band.  The 
refinement coefficient is found on the y-axis, horizontally opposite the intersection of the relationship 
between valuation of properties and the appropriate upper band.   



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 6  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 

 
Using the upper band with average nonresidential property valued at 3.04 times the average local 
property, a refinement coefficient of 1.44 is indicated.  Applying the refinement coefficient to the simple 
proportion of value and multiplying the total municipal operating costs results in an increased share of 
total municipal operating costs assigned to aggregate local nonresidential uses. 
 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 7  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 
To calculate the total existing municipal expenditures to nonresidential uses, the total municipal 
expenditures are multiplied by the proportion of nonresidential to total local real property value times 
the refinement coefficient.  That is, the percentage of non-residential real property value (30.99%) times 
the refinement coefficient (1.44).  This calculates that the nonresidential expenses are 44.63% of the 
overall expenses.  Inversely, this means 55.37% of the expenses are attributable to residential.  This 
factor is applied later to the expenses for the subject analysis. 
 
Using this residential portion, the new expenses to the Town due to the proposed residential apartment 
complex are estimated.  The current 2021 / 2022 budget amounts were broken down to a per person 
basis by budgetary category for all the Town expenses.  It is to be noted some Town expenses will not 
be impacted by the new subject apartments.  Specifically, refuse collection & disposal, recycling 
collection & disposal, and leaf collection as none of these are provided to apartment complexes.  In 2019 
Jeff O’Neill and I agreed that several other expenses will not increase but, to be conservative, all 
expenses except for refuse collection and disposal, recycling, and leaf collection were considered to 
increase.  Examples of items that would not directly increase are Public street maintenance, Maintenance 
of government buildings, Public works administration, and Debt service.  Town snow removal and 
public road maintenance is for public roads.  All the roads in the complex will be maintained and 
plowed by the apartment complex owner but these expenses also were included as the added traffic 
could increase existing town maintenance slightly.  By including all the expenses except the following 
three items and increasing them on a per person basis, these expenses are overstated in my analysis.   
 
The following is the excluded item budget amounts in the Maintenance & Development account. 
 
  Total Maintenance & Development    $6,287,094 
  Less: 
   Refuse Collection & Disposal  $1,255,702 
   Recycling Collection & Disposal      359,565 
 Leaf Collection 126,924 
  Not Impacted Expenses     $1,742,191 
  Expenses considered to be impacted    $4,544,903 
 
A copy of the 2021 / 2022 Vernon Budget expense summary is on the following page.  On the page after 
the expenses are adjusted using the earlier determined Refinement Coefficient and the town population 
to break down the expenses to a per person.  Finance Director and Town Treasurer Jeff O’Neill told me 
they planned the 2019 / 2020 budget on a population of around 30,000.  In 2019 he recommended I use 
the July 8, 2019 North Central Health District invoice stated a population of 29,289.  For this updated 
analysis, I used the 2020 Census which lists the Vernon population at 30,215 people. 
 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 8  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 

 
 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 9  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 
The following chart first applies the residential portion of each expense and then divides that by the 
current population (per 2020 census) of 30,215 resulting in a per person expense for residential 
properties.  
 

Category 
Total 2021/2022 

Budget 
Residential 

Ratio 
Total Residential 

Expense 
Per Person 

Expense 
General Government $3,852,919 55.37% $2,133,361 $70.61 
Community Development 311,558 55.37% 172,510 5.71 
Public Safety 8,968,961 55.37% 4,966,114 164.36 
Maintenance & Development 4,544,903 55.37% 2,494,460 83.29 
Human Services 1,190,957 55.37% 659,433 21.82 
Recreation & Culture 2,088,360 55.37% 1,156,325 38.27 
Townwide 8,789,906 55.37% 4,866,971 161.08 
Town Capital Improvements 659,810 55.37% 365,337 12.09 
Debt Service 7,433,639 55.37% 4,116,006 136.22 

 
  
To estimate how many new residents the subject 70 units will create, the voter registration list for the 
same four existing similar apartment complexes in Vernon were reviewed.  No other public source is 
known to count the number of residents in an apartment complex.  I asked the management and owners 
of each complex and they did not know.  To accurately indicate the number of people per unit, the total 
number of voters was divided by the total number of units with at least one registered voter.  The major 
assumption in this count is that if one person in a unit registered to vote, all eligible voters registered.   
 
Complex # Registered Voters # Units with a Registered Voter # of Voters Per Unit 
Grand Lofts I 80 53 1.51 
Grand Lofts II 25 18 1.39 
Grand Lofts III 255 168 1.52 
The Mansions 533 388 1.37 

 
The indicated numbers of voter aged people in an apartment unit are basically 1.4 or 1.5.  To be on the 
high side for people and expenses, 1.5 voter aged people per unit for the subject was concluded. 
Based on this rate the subject 70 apartment complex is projected to contain 105 voter aged people. 
 
To reflect all residents, the number of school aged children was estimated using public information from 
the Vernon Board of Education.  The Board of Education was able to provide the Town the number of 
students in the same similar apartment complexes as above.  Grand Lofts III was inadvertently omitted 
so the student count there is not included.   
 
Complex – Address # of students # of units # of students per unit 
Grand Lofts I – 1031 Hartford Turnpike 1 66 0.015 
Grand Lofts II – 1085 Hartford Turnpike 1 32 0.031 
The Mansions – 75 Hockanum Blvd 35 714 0.049 

 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 10  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 
The three complexes have a significant range of students per unit.  Recognizing The mansions is very 
close to the subject in location, its number of students was most relied on and I concluded 0.05 students 
per unit for the subject proposed complex.  This is at the high end estimating the number of students and 
the potential education expenses at the high end.  Based on this the subject 70 units will have 3.5, 
rounded to 4 students.  By rounding up the expenses are estimated on the high side.  Adding these 4 
students increases the number of people in the subject complex to 109 (1.56 people per unit). 
 
To support this number, I researched the 2020 census data for number of people that live in a townhouse 
unit in Vernon or in Connecticut.  Data is only compiled for per housing unit which includes single 
family detached houses, condominiums of all types, and apartments.  The 2020 census reported the 
population of Vernon was 30,215 and there were 13,039 housing units.  This calculates to the average 
household size of 2.32 people.  This is more than my estimated 1.56 in each of the subject apartment 
units.  But it is recognized that detached single family houses typically have more occupants than 
apartments.   
 
Therefore, I am concluding 109 new residents in the subject proposed 70 units.  Of these, 4 will be 
school aged children.  I am unable to account for pre-school aged children.  But the census average 
indicates I am already close to the town wide average so in my opinion, all new residents are 
realistically recognized.  
  
Next the new expenses to the Vernon Board of Education were estimated.  The Board of Education 
budget is impacted by the number of students, so it was looked at on a per student basis.  This method is 
the professionally recognized method and in 2019 both Finance Director & Treasurer Jeff O’Neill and 
Superintendent Dr. Joseph Macary agreed with this method. 
 
The Board of Education 2021 / 2022 budget is $55,032,612 including Capital Outlays.  These amounts 
were reduced by the budgeted State Education Funds of $17,645,165.  The remaining $37,387,447 was 
then divided by the current 3,379 students in the school system (per the superintendent’s office and 
including the magnet school students) to arrive at a local taxpayer paid Board of Education expense of 
$11,058.10 per student.  It is to be noted this amount was not adjusted for commercial versus residential 
assessments as it was looked at on a per student basis. 
 

Board of Education $55,032,612 
Less State Assistance $17,645,165 
Vernon Tax Paid Expense $37,387,447 
Divided by Number of Students     3,381 
Amount Per Student $11,058.10 

 
 
On the next page is the mathematical calculation of Annual Income and Expenses to the Town of 
Vernon due to the subject new condominium complex using the factors outlined. 
 
 
 

 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 11  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 

ANNUAL FISCAL IMPACT ON THE TOWN OF VERNON 
 
Income: 
 Real Estate 
                        $7,654,936 x 39.63 mills = $303,365 
 Motor Vehicle Taxes  
  $1,136,216 x 39.63 mills =       45,028 
 Total Income $348,393 
 
Expenses: 
 

Category Budget per 
Person 

# new 
People 

  

General Government $70.61 109 $7,697  
Community Development 5.71 109 622  
Public Safety 164.36 109 17,915  
Maintenance & Development 83.29 109 9,079  
Human Services 21.82 109 2,378  
Recreation & Culture 38.27 109 4,171  
Townwide 161.08 109 17,558  
Town Capital Improvements 12.09 109 1,318  
Debt Service 136.22 109 14,848  
Board of Education 11,058.10 4 44,232  
Total Expenses    $119,818  

 
Net Annual Impact to the 
Town of Vernon 

    
$228,575 

 
 
To  reflect the true change in annual income and expenses due to the proposed apartment complex, the 
local property taxes presently paid by the subject unimproved land needs to be deducted.  It is to be 
noted that this again overstates the impact as I am not deducting any expenses allocated to the current 
21.6 acres (per survey) which is seven parcels.  The following table is the 2020 Grand List assessment 
and taxes paid by the subject land. 
 
Address Acreage 2020 Assessment 2020 mill rate Annual Taxes 
26 Naek Rd 1.56  $38,930 39.63 $1,542.80 
32 Naek Rd 1.37  $35,340 39.63 $1,400.52 
38 Naek Rd 1.30 $34,020 39.63 $1,348.22 
46 Naek Rd 2.38 $38,500 39.63 $1,525.76 
37 Naek Rd 3.95 $52,500 39.63 $2,080.58 
291 Talcottville Rd 9.81 $94,500 39.63 $6,506.06 
293 Talcottville Rd 1.25 $900 39.63 $357.46 
Totals 21.62 acres   $14,761.40 



The Rashid Hamid Family Limited Partnership  Page 12  
Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 
 
Deducting the current $14,761 in taxes paid, but none of the associated, Town expenses, from the 
indicated impact to the Town of $228,575 indicates an annual increase in net income to the Town of 
Vernon of $213,814, rounded to $215,000.    
 
In conclusion, my analysis of the fiscal impact of the proposed 70 unit apartment complex, as outlined, 
on the Town of Vernon concludes that the Town will have an annual net gain of $215,000 each year.  In 
other words, the services provided to the residents of the complex will cost the Town of Vernon 
$215,000 less than the taxes paid by the owners and residents on an annual basis.   
 
As outlined on several occasions, this number is very conservative as expenses were overstated on 
several items.  I included all Town expenses except for three that are not provided to apartment 
complexes.  The expenses throughout the town were increased on a per person basis even though such 
things as snow removal, debt service, and administration will not increase with a 109 person or, one-
third of one percent, increase in the Town population.  The number of new students was realistically 
estimated based on the number of students in similar existing apartments in Vernon.  Continuing to be 
conservative, the number of students was estimated at the high end of existing complexes and then 
rounded up.  The education expenses are 37% of all the new expenses so its estimate is very important.  
Even if the number of new residents were increased by 50% (to 164 people including 6 students), there 
would still be a net income to the Town of $153,558 or over $150,000 per year from the subject 
proposed apartment complex.   
 
It is stressed this fiscal impact is on an annual basis once the proposed apartment complex is fully built 
and occupied.  This analysis did not consider the one-time fees such as building permits, sewer 
connection fees, etc. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
 
Robert G. Stewart 
Certified General Appraiser RCG.0000581 
Expires April 30, 2022 
 
[21031a.docx] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TRAFFIC IMPACT AND ACCESS STUDY 

 

 

 

The Village at Naek Road 
Vernon, Connecticut 

PREPARED FOR 
 
Naek Construction Co., Inc. 
146 Main Street 
Manchester, CT 06042 
860.646.6555 

PREPARED BY 

 
100 Great Meadow Road 
Suite 200 
Wethersfield, CT 06109 
860.807.4300 

November 29, 2021 
 

 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 i Table of Contents 

Table of Contents 

 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................... 3 

1.1 Project Description .................................................................................................................... 3 

1.2 Summary of Findings ............................................................................................................... 4 

1.3 Study Methodology .................................................................................................................. 4 

2 2021 Existing Conditions .............................................................................................. 6 

2.1 Study Area .................................................................................................................................... 6 

2.1.1 Intersections ............................................................................................................ 6 

2.1.2 Roadways ................................................................................................................. 7 

2.2 Crash History and Analysis ..................................................................................................... 7 

2.3 Traffic Count Data...................................................................................................................... 9 

3 2022 Future Conditions .............................................................................................. 10 

3.1 2022 No-Build Conditions .................................................................................................... 10 

3.1.1 Background Traffic Growth ............................................................................. 11 

3.1.2 Traffic Growth due to Other Planned Developments ........................... 11 

3.2 2022 Build Conditions ............................................................................................................ 11 

3.2.1 Site-Generated Traffic ....................................................................................... 11 

3.2.2 Trip Distribution and Assignment ................................................................ 12 

4 Traffic Operations Analysis ........................................................................................ 14 

4.1 Method ........................................................................................................................................ 14 

4.2 Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis ...................................................................... 15 

5 Conclusion .................................................................................................................... 17 

 

Appendix ....................................................................................................................... 1 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 ii List of Tables 

List of Tables 

Table No. Description Page 

Table 1 Crash Analysis Summary ....................................................................................................... 8 

Table 2 Trip Generation Summary .................................................................................................. 12 

Table 3 Regional Trip Distribution .................................................................................................. 13 

Table 4 Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis Summary ................................................ 16 

 

List of Figures 

Figure No. Description  

Figure 1 Site and Study Intersection Locations 

Figure 2 2021 Existing Conditions – Peak Hour Traffic Volumes  

Figure 3 2022 No-Build Conditions – Peak Hour Traffic Volumes  

Figure 4 Site-Generated Trip Distribution 

Figure 5 Site-Generated Trips – Peak Hour Traffic Volumes  

Figure 6 2022 Build Conditions – Peak Hour Traffic Volumes  

 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 3 Introduction 

   

 
Introduction 
Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc. (VHB) has been retained by Naek Construction Co., Inc. to 
complete a traffic impact and access study (TIAS) for the proposed townhouse development 
(“The Village at Naek Road”) located on the parcels of 291 & 293 Talcottville Road and 27, 
32, 37, 38, and 46 Naek Road in Vernon, Connecticut.  

This TIAS quantifies existing and future transportation conditions and identifies possible 
traffic impacts of the proposed project. 

This study was prepared to support the Special Permit application to the Town of Vernon. 

1.1 Project Description 

The site is located on the parcels of 291 & 293 Talcottville Road and 27, 32, 37, 38, and 46 
Naek Road in Vernon, Connecticut. The existing site is wooded, and located at the end of a 
cul-de-sac on Naek Road. The proposed development of the site consists of the construction 
of 70 townhouse units. Parking for the townhouses is provided at each unit, with 
approximately 45 additional guest spaces provided throughout the development.  

The proposed site plan is included in the Appendix.  

Three new driveways will be constructed to support vehicular site ingress and egress: two 
driveways in the cul-de-sac to access the units on either side of Naek Road, and one 
driveway along the north side of Naek Road to access a parking area with eight parking 
spaces.  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 4 Introduction 

   

1.2 Summary of Findings 

The transportation impacts of the project were examined during the study area’s weekday 
morning and evening peak hours at the intersection of Route 83 (Talcottville Road) at Naek 
Road. An analysis of existing conditions was conducted for the study area in 2021 to 
compare to future scenarios. A no-build condition for the year 2022 (the year the project is 
expected to be completed) was developed to create a base future condition without the 
project, incorporating background traffic growth and growth attributed to area projects 
proposed by others. A build condition for the year 2022 was developed to evaluate future 
transportation conditions with the project constructed. The following are key findings of the 
TIAS: 

• The project is anticipated to generate 34 total trips (8 entering and 26 exiting) 
during the morning peak hour and 43 total trips (27 entering and 16 exiting) during 
the evening peak hour. These are net-new trips to the transportation network. 

• Approximately 80% of the site generated traffic will travel to and from the south 
along Route 83 (Talcottville Road) towards the Interstate 84 interchange.  

• The study area intersection will operate at acceptable Levels Of Service (LOS) during 
the peak hours with no significant impacts.  

1.3 Study Methodology 

This TIAS evaluates existing conditions at the study area intersection and roadways, 
quantifies the potential traffic impacts of the proposed project along these roadways, and 
provides potential measures for consideration to mitigate such impacts.  

The study examines existing conditions, representing the study area at the time of this study, 
future no-build conditions, representing the study area one year from now if the project is 
not constructed, and future build conditions, representing the study area one year from now 
if the project is constructed as proposed. A one-year planning horizon was selected to 
coincide with the anticipated opening year of the project. 

The project is expected to generate the highest volumes of traffic during the weekday 
morning and evening commuting peak hours. The analyses performed herein are based on 
the hour with the highest traffic volumes within each time period. The 2021 existing 
conditions traffic volumes are established as the baseline for the study and are described in 
greater detail in a later section.  

Historic traffic growth on the study area roadways is evaluated to determine if traffic 
volumes are anticipated to grow in the future. Additionally, other development projects that 
are planned near the study area are evaluated to determine if they would impact the study 
roadways. These conditions are layered onto the existing conditions to create the no-build 
conditions. 

The TIAS has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Town of Vernon and 
the Connecticut Department of Transportation (CT DOT). 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 5 Introduction 

   

Finally, traffic that could be generated by the proposed project is calculated and added to 
the no-build conditions to determine the build conditions. Traffic analyses are conducted for 
all three scenarios to compare existing and future roadway capacities and demands. These 
analyses are used as the basis for determining potential project impacts. 

  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 6 2021 Existing Conditions 

   

 

 
2021 Existing Conditions 
Evaluation of the transportation impacts associated with the proposed project requires an 
understanding of the existing transportation system in the project study area. The 2021 
existing conditions evaluation consisted of an inventory of intersection traffic control, 
roadway geometry, traffic volumes, and recent vehicle crash history in the study area. Each of 
these elements is described in detail below. 

2.1 Study Area 

2.1.1 Intersections 

The study area consists of the signalized intersection of Route 83 (Talcottville Road) at Naek 
Road. The selected signalized intersection and the surrounding area are shown in Figure 1 
and described below: 

Route 83 is intersected by Naek Road from the west to form a T-leg signalized intersection. 
The northbound Route 83 approach consists of two through lanes, and the southbound 
approach consists of a shared left-turn/through lane and a through lane. The eastbound 
approach consists of a shared left-turn/right-turn lane. Traffic is controlled by an actuated 
coordinated traffic control signal. 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 7 2021 Existing Conditions 

   

2.1.2 Roadways 

Naek Road is a two-lane (one lane in each direction) local roadway with no outlet. Naek 
Road provides access to several industrial and commercial properties located west of Route 
83. No sidewalks are present on this roadway. 

Route 83 (Talcottville Road) is a four-lane (two lanes in each direction) north-south principal 
arterial roadway with auxiliary turning lanes provided at major intersections and commercial 
driveways. The posted speed limit along Route 83 is 40 miles per hour in the study area, 35 
miles per hour between Allan Drive and the Route 30 junction, and 40 miles per hour south 
of the Route 30 junction. Land use along Route 83 consists primarily of 
commercial/residential development. No sidewalks are present on this roadway in the study 
area. The CT Transit bus routes 82 and 84 operate along Route 83. 

2.2 Crash History and Analysis 

To identify potential vehicle crash trends and/or roadway deficiencies within the project 
study area, VHB conducted a review of the Connecticut Crash Data Repository (CTCDR) 
developed by UConn for the most recent three years of crash data collection (January 2017 – 
December 2019). Table 1 summarizes the crash data by documenting the number of 
geolocated crashes that have occurred for various categories including the year of the 
collision, collision type, severity, time of day, season, pavement conditions, light conditions, 
and non-motorists involved. Detailed crash data are included in the Appendix. 

Route 83 at Naek Road reported 11 crashes during the three-year span. Approximately 64% 
of the crashes were rear-end collisions. A majority of the collisions were property damage 
only, with two crashes resulting in an injury. No crashes involved a pedestrian or a fatality.  

  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 8 2021 Existing Conditions 

   

Table 1 Crash Analysis Summary 

  Route 83 (Talcottville Road) 
at Naek Road 

Signalized/Unsignalized Signalized 
Year  

2017 4 
2018 1 
2019 6 
Total 11 
Collision Type  

Angle 0 
Front to rear 7 
Sideswipe, same direction 3 
Fixed Object 1 
Animal 0 
Other 0 
Total 11 
Severity  

Fatal Injury 0 
Injury - Serious 0 
Injury - Minor 0 
Injury - Possible 2 
Property Damage Only 9 
Not Reported/Unknown 0 
Total 11 
Time of day  

Weekday, 7:00 AM - 9:00 AM 2 
Weekday, 4:00 – 6:00 PM 0 
Saturday, 11:00 AM – 1:00 PM 1 
Other time 8 
Total 11 
Season  

Dec – Feb 1 
Mar – May 2 
June – Aug 4 
Sept – Nov 4 
Total 11 
Pavement Conditions  

Dry 9 
Wet 1 
Ice/Frost 0 
Snow 1 
Total 11 
Light Conditions  

Daylight 10 
Dawn/Dusk 0 
Dark, Not Lighted 0 
Dark, Lighted 1 
Unknown 0 
Total 11 
Non-Motorist (Bike, 

Pedestrian) 
0 

Source: UConn Connecticut Crash Data Repository 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 9 2021 Existing Conditions 

   

2.3 Traffic Count Data 

To assess current traffic conditions along the roadways serving the project study area, peak-
hour turning movement counts (TMCs) would typically be collected at each study 
intersection. The project will generate the most traffic during the peak commuter time 
periods, and therefore traffic counts would be collected during the typical weekday morning 
and evening peak hours. Due to the downturn in economic conditions with the pandemic, 
existing traffic volumes are currently lower than average, and traffic patterns may have 
changed compared to conditions before March 2020.  

Therefore, traffic volume data provided in a previous traffic impact study for the Trail Run 
Mixed-Use Development1 was used for the purposes of this study. The Trail Run traffic study 
used traffic counts originally collected in the last quarter of 2015 and included peak hour 
traffic volume projections for 2017 Build Conditions with the full occupancy of the Trail Run 
development. Based on conversations with the Town of Vernon and the Connecticut 
Department of Transportation (CTDOT) Bureau of Policy and Planning, there have been no 
other recent developments constructed since the Trail Run study was completed. As 
recommended by the CTDOT Bureau of Policy and Planning, a 0.7% annual growth rate was 
applied to the 2017 Build Condition traffic volumes from the Trail Run study over a four-year 
period to develop the “2021 Existing Conditions” traffic volume networks used in this study. 
It should be noted that the Trail Run development is not yet fully occupied. As such, using 
the full build volumes from the Trail Run report results in a conservative evaluation of 
existing conditions.  

The raw volumes and background development information are included in the Appendix. 
The 2021 existing conditions traffic volumes are shown in Figures 2 and 3.  

  

 

1 Traffic Impact and Access Study for Trail Run Mixed Use Development, prepared by VHB, dated December 2016 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 10 2022 Future Conditions 

   

 

 
2022 Future Conditions 
Based upon the project development schedule provided by the project team, the proposed 
project is expected to be occupied in 2022. Therefore, the year 2022 was used for future 
traffic estimations, first modelled without the project in place, and then modelled with the 
project in place. The traffic volumes projected to be realized in the 2022 no-build and 2022 
build conditions, as described in the following sections, provide a basis of comparison to 
evaluate the transportation impacts of the project. 

3.1 2022 No-Build Conditions 

The future no-build scenario includes the 2021 existing conditions traffic volumes, 
anticipated background traffic growth, and other known development projects affecting the 
study area network.  

Traffic growth in the study area is a function of expected land development, economic 
activity, and changes in local and regional demographics. A frequently used procedure by 
the transportation engineering industry is to estimate the historical annual percentage 
increase in traffic volumes and apply that increase to the study-area traffic volumes. Another 
procedure involves the estimation of traffic generated by specific planned major 
developments that would be expected to affect traffic volumes on the study area roadways. 
Both methods were assessed.  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 11 2022 Future Conditions 

   

3.1.1 Background Traffic Growth 

As recommended by the CTDOT Bureau of Policy and Planning, the 2021 existing conditions 
traffic volumes were increased by 0.7% over two years to account for ambient traffic growth 
in the study area by 2022. 

3.1.2 Traffic Growth due to Other Planned Developments 

It was determined from discussions with the Town of Vernon and CT DOT that there are no 
known pending projects that would impact traffic within the project study area.  

The 2022 no-build traffic volumes, resulting from applying 0.7% annual growth to the 2021 
existing volumes, are presented in Figure 3. 

3.2 2022 Build Conditions 

The 2022 build conditions represent future conditions with the opening of the proposed 
project. The 2022 build conditions traffic volumes include the no-build conditions volumes 
plus the vehicle trips anticipated to be generated by the project. 

3.2.1 Site-Generated Traffic 

The vehicle trips the project is expected to generate were calculated based on trip 
generation rates provided in the ITE Trip Generation manual, 10th edition. The rate at which 
any development generates traffic is dependent upon a number of factors such as size, 
location, and concentration of surrounding developments. The trip generation associated 
with the proposed development program is shown in Table 2. 

  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 12 2022 Future Conditions 

   

Table 2 Trip Generation Summary 

Time Period Total Trips1 

Weekday  
Daily (vpd) 488 

  

Morning Peak Hour (vph)  

Enter 8 

Exit 26 

Total 34 
  

Evening Peak Hour (vph)  

Enter 27 

Exit 16 

Total 43 

    
Source: Institute of Transportation Engineers, Trip Generation, 10th Edition 
vpd = vehicles per day, vph = vehicles per hour 
1  ITE Land Use Code 220 Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise), 70 units 

The project is expected to generate 34 total trips (8 entering and 26 exiting) during the 
morning peak hour and 43 total trips (27 entering and 16 exiting) during the evening peak 
hour. These represent entirely new trips to the network. The ITE trip generation is included in 
the Appendix. 

It was determined that the transportation mode share for all trips to and from the site would 
be by automobile. Although there are bus services as described previously that serve 
Talcottville Road, it was assumed that the majority of trips would be by private automobile. 
The surrounding land use of the site does not encourage walking or biking. 

3.2.2 Trip Distribution and Assignment 

The site-generated trips presented in Table 2 were distributed along the study area 
roadways and assigned to specific intersection turning movements to determine where 
exactly project-related traffic impacts may occur. 

The directional distribution of the vehicular traffic approaching and departing the site is a 
function of population densities, the location of employment, existing travel patterns, and 
the efficiency of the existing roadway system. Anticipated trip distribution patterns for the 
Village at Naek Road residential development were assumed to be similar to the trip 
distribution for the residential portion of the Trail Run development located immediately to 
the south. The trip distribution for the Trail Run development was developed based on a 
review of Journey-to-Work census data, since the trips entering and exiting the site during 
the weekday morning and evening peak traffic periods are expected to be predominantly 
home-to-work and work-to-home trips, respectively. The Trail Run development trip 
distribution was documented in the traffic impact study, which was approved by the Town of 
Vernon and Office of the State Traffic Administration (OSTA).  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 13 2022 Future Conditions 

   

The results of the evaluation are shown in Table 3. The estimated distribution was then 
applied to the study area roadways and intersections to develop the trip assignment to each 
intersection turning movement. The resulting distribution is depicted graphically in Figure 4.  

Table 3 Regional Trip Distribution 

Traffic Entering/Leaving via 
Portion of Project-
Generated Traffic 

Route 83 to/from the north 20% 
Route 83 to/from the south 80% 
Source: VHB Trail Run Mixed-Use Development 2016 Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

The resulting site-generated trips are depicted in Figure 5. These site-generated trips were 
then added to the 2022 no-build conditions traffic volumes to develop the 2022 build 
conditions traffic volumes, presented in Figure 6. 

  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 14 Traffic Operations Analysis 

   

 

 
Traffic Operations Analysis 
To assess the quality of traffic operations within the study area, intersection capacity 
analyses were conducted for the 2021 existing conditions, the 2022 no-build conditions, and 
the 2022 build conditions. Capacity analyses provide an indication of the adequacy of the 
roadway facilities to serve the anticipated traffic demands. 

4.1 Method 

In accordance with CT DOT requirements, the evaluation criteria used to analyze signalized 
intersections in this study are based on the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) 2000 

2. As the 
HCM indicates, intersection traffic operations are influenced by several factors: the type of 
traffic control, traffic demand, lane use configurations, lane widths, turning restrictions, 
roadway grade, and for signalized intersections, signal phasing and timings. The following 
are some of the parameters used to assess quality of traffic operations. 

• Level of service (LOS) is the term used to denote the different operating conditions 
which occur on a given roadway segment under various traffic volume loads. It is a 
qualitative measure of a number of factors including roadway geometrics, speed, 
travel delay and freedom to maneuver. Level of service provides an index to the 
operational qualities of a roadway segment or an intersection. Level-of-service 
designations range from A to F, with LOS A representing the least congested 
operating conditions and LOS F representing the most congested conditions. It is 

 

2 Highway Capacity Manual, Transportation Research Board, Washington, DC (2000). 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 15 Traffic Operations Analysis 

   

important to note that intersections during peak traffic conditions are not 
necessarily expected to operate at LOS A; an intersection operating at LOS A during 
typical peak conditions may suggest that the roadway is over-designed with too 
much capacity. 

• Delay is a complex measure that depends upon a number of variables such as 
quality of signal progression, cycle length, allocation of green time, and volume-to-
capacity (v/c) ratio. Of all the factors cited, v/c ratios have the least effect on delay. 
Thus, for any given v/c ratio, a range of delay values (and, therefore, levels of service) 
may result. Conversely, for a given level of service, the v/c ratio may lie anywhere 
within a broad range. Comparison of intersection capacity results therefore requires 
that in addition to the LOS, the other measures of effectiveness (MOEs) also be 
considered.  

LOS designations are reported differently for signalized and unsignalized intersections. For 
signalized intersections, the analysis considers the operation of all traffic entering the 
intersection and the LOS designation for overall conditions at the intersection. For 
unsignalized intersections, the analysis assumes that traffic on the mainline is not affected by 
traffic on the side streets. Thus, the LOS designation is for the critical movement exiting the 
side street and is typically the left turn out of the side street or site driveway. 

Synchro 10 Software was used to model the study intersections based on the parameters 
described. Synchro is widely used by traffic engineering professionals and is an approved 
analysis software by CT DOT. It is consistent with HCM 2000 and HCM 6th Edition which 
provide sufficient basis for the discussion of traffic operations of signalized and unsignalized 
intersections, respectively. 

4.2 Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 

Table 4 presents a summary of the capacity analyses for the signalized intersection. The 
Synchro analysis reports are included in the Appendix. 

The results indicate Route 83 at Naek Road maintain acceptable LOS through 2022 build 
conditions. The proposed project does not negatively impact operations at this location. 

Route 83 and Naek Road: Overall LOS A is maintained through 2022 build conditions in the 
morning peak and is increased to LOS B in the evening peak. The southbound right turn 
movement increases from LOS A to LOS B during both peak hours. General increases in 
delay are minimal across all approaches. Overall, the proposed development will not create 
an impact on the roadway network. 

 

 



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 16 Traffic Operations Analysis 

   

Table 4 Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis Summary 

Source: VHB, Inc. using Synchro 10 software. 
1 volume-to-capacity ratio  
2 delay, in seconds  
3 level of service  
4 50th percentile queue length, in feet 
5 95th percentile queue length, in feet 
EB = Eastbound; WB = Westbound; NB = Northbound; SB = Southbound; R = right; T = through, L= left 
#  95th% volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer 
~ Volume exceeds capacity, queue is theoretically infinite 
m Volume for 95th percentile queue is metered by upstream signal 

  

 Peak 

Hour 
Mov’t 

2021 Existing Conditions 2022 No-Build Conditions 2022 Build Conditions 

Location v/c1 Del2 LOS3 Q504 Q955 v/c Del LOS Q50 Q95 v/c Del LOS Q50 Q95 

Rte. 83 at 

Naek Road 

AM EB LR 0.17 47.1 D 2 13 0.17 47.1 D 2 13 0.16 41.7 D 6 27 

 NB LT 0.38 0.6 A 0 26 0.38 0.6 A 0 26 0.42 1.0 A 36 34 

 SB TR 0.64 8.6 A 185 561 0.64 9.0 A 186 566 0.68 12.1 B 457 582 

 Overall 0.62 6.0 A   0.62 6.2 A   0.63 8.7 A   

                  

 PM EB LR 0.29 40.5 D 18 46 0.29 40.5 D 18 46 0.28 38.7 D 20 49 

  NB LT 0.79 10.9 B 358 534 0.80 10.9 B 343 539 0.87 14.2 B 268 #568 

  SB TR 0.48 10.7 B 338 383 0.48 11.1 B 360 385 0.49 13.6 B 323 387 

  Overall 0.78 11.7 B   0.78 11.4 B   0.84 14.8 B   

                  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 17 Conclusion 

   

 

 
Conclusion 
This document has outlined the anticipated transportation impacts of the proposed 
townhouse development (The Village at Naek Road) development at 291 & 293 Talcottville 
Road and 27, 32, 37, 38, and 46 Naek Road in Vernon, Connecticut. This study was prepared 
to support the Special Permit application to the Town of Vernon. 

The proposed townhouse development will have minimal impact on the roadway network 
adjacent to the project site. This Traffic Impact Statement estimates that the project would 
generate 34 total trips during the morning peak hour and 43 total trips during the afternoon 
peak hour. The afternoon peak hour contains the highest volume of traffic on the roadway 
network; the addition of the trips associated with the proposed development do not 
significantly impact the existing and future conditions of the roadway network. It is the 
conclusion of this investigation that the proposed site driveways will provide adequate 
access to the site, and no transportation mitigation is needed at the study area intersections 
to support the project. 

Materials supporting the findings within this document are included in the attached 
Appendix.  



© 2020 Microsoft Corporation © 2020 Maxar ©CNES (2020) Distribution Airbus DS 
© 2020 Microsoft Corporation © 2020 Maxar ©CNES (2020) Distribution Airbus DS © 2020 Microsoft Corporation © 2020 Maxar ©CNES (2020) Distribution Airbus DS 

Ta
lco

tv
ille

 R
oa

d 
(R

ou
te

 83
)

Study Intersection

Proposed Site

Naek Road

0 300 Feet600

\\vhb.com\gbl\proj\Wethersfield\43105.00\Graphics\FIGURES\SITE LOCATION FIG.dwg

Figure 1Site and Study Intersection Location
Proposed Townhouse Development
291 & 293 Talcottville Road and
27,32,37,38, and 46 Naeks Road, Vernon, CT

To Interstate 84



\\vhb.com\gbl\proj\Wethersfield\43105.00\Graphics\FIGURES\SITE LOCATION FIG.dwg

Figure 22021 Existing Conditions
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes
Proposed Townhouse Development
Vernon, CT

# Weekday Morning Peak Hour
# (Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour)

Not to Scale

SNaek Road
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
...

...
.

...
...
...
..

......
������

��
���

��
��

��
��
��

��



\\vhb\gbl\proj\Wethersfield\43105.00\Graphics\FIGURES\SITE LOCATION FIG.dwg

Figure 32022 No-Build Conditions
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes
Proposed Townhouse Development
Vernon, CT

# Weekday Morning Peak Hour
# (Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour)

Not to Scale

SNaek Road
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
...

...
.

...
...
...
..

......
������

��
���

��
��

��
��
��

��



\\vhb\gbl\proj\Wethersfield\43105.00\Graphics\FIGURES\SITE LOCATION FIG.dwg

Figure 4Site-Generated Trip Distribution

Proposed Townhouse Development
Vernon, CT

Entering Site Traffic
(Exiting Site Traffic)

Not to Scale

SNaek Road
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
...

.....

.....
��

�



\\vhb\gbl\proj\Wethersfield\43105.00\Graphics\FIGURES\SITE LOCATION FIG.dwg

Figure 5Site-Generated Trips
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes
Proposed Townhouse Development
Vernon, CT

# Weekday Morning Peak Hour
# (Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour)

Not to Scale

SNaek Road
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
...

..

.....
.......

��
��
��



\\vhb\gbl\proj\Wethersfield\43105.00\Graphics\FIGURES\SITE LOCATION FIG.dwg

Figure 62022 Build Conditions
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes
Proposed Townhouse Development
Vernon, CT

# Weekday Morning Peak Hour
# (Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour)

Not to Scale

SNaek Road
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
Ta

lc
ot

tv
ill

e 
Ro

ad
...

...
.

...
...
...
..

......
�������

��
���

��
��

��
��
��

��



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 A1 Appendix 

Appendix 

Crash Data 

Traffic Counts 

Background Project Trip Generation 

 Trail Run 243 & 253 Talcottville Road, Vernon, CT 

Project Trip Generation 

Capacity Analysis Reports 

  



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 A3 Appendix 

Crash Data 
  



CrashId Town Name Date Of Crash Time of Crash Most Severe Injury Manner of Crash / Collision Impact Weather Condition Light Condition Road Surface Condition
412682 Vernon 7/19/2017 14:52:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Sideswipe, same direction Clear Daylight Dry
423025 Vernon 8/1/2017 12:47:00 Possible Injury (C) Front to rear Clear Daylight Dry
470196 Vernon 12/14/2017 7:41:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Sideswipe, same direction Snow Daylight Snow
541887 Vernon 8/8/2018 10:32:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Front to rear Clear Daylight Dry
637578 Vernon 4/29/2019 14:33:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Front to rear Clear Daylight Dry
647736 Vernon 5/31/2019 22:02:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Sideswipe, same direction Clear Dark-Lighted Dry
677649 Vernon 8/22/2019 12:55:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Front to rear Clear Daylight Dry
695425 Vernon 10/3/2019 8:09:00 Possible Injury (C) Front to rear Cloudy Daylight Dry
698824 Vernon 10/12/2019 12:55:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Not Applicable Clear Daylight Dry
700826 Vernon 10/17/2019 14:13:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Front to rear Rain Daylight Wet
706182 Vernon 11/1/2019 14:21:00 No Apparent Injury (O) Front to rear Clear Daylight Dry

Crash Data 2017-2019: Naek Road at Route 83



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 A4 Appendix 

Traffic Counts 
  















mpause
Ellipse



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 A5 Appendix 

Background Project Trip Generation 
Trail Run 243 & 253 Talcottville Road, Vernon, CT   



mpause
Ellipse



mpause
Ellipse





mpause
Ellipse



The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 A6 Appendix 

Project Trip Generation 
  









The Village at Naek Road | Traffic Impact and Access Study 

 

 A7 Appendix 

Capacity Analysis Reports 



Queues 2021 Existing Conditions

5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Naek Road Synchro 10 Report

Vernon, CT Page 1

Lane Group EBL NBL NBT SBT

Lane Configurations

Traffic Volume (vph) 3 29 685 1667

Future Volume (vph) 3 29 685 1667

Lane Group Flow (vph) 8 0 939 1771

Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA

Protected Phases 4 5 2 6

Permitted Phases 2

Detector Phase 4 5 2 6

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 5.0 20.0 20.0

Minimum Split (s) 11.0 8.1 25.5 25.5

Total Split (s) 19.0 14.0 71.0 57.0

Total Split (%) 21.1% 15.6% 78.9% 63.3%

Yellow Time (s) 3.0 3.0 4.5 4.5

All-Red Time (s) 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.0

Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Lost Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5

Lead/Lag Lead Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes

Recall Mode None Min C-Min C-Min

v/c Ratio 0.06 0.37 0.61

Control Delay 31.5 0.8 7.5

Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Delay 31.5 0.8 7.5

Queue Length 50th (ft) 2 0 185

Queue Length 95th (ft) 13 26 561

Internal Link Dist (ft) 410 481 781

Turn Bay Length (ft)

Base Capacity (vph) 265 2545 2896

Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0

Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 47

Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0

Reduced v/c Ratio 0.03 0.37 0.62

Intersection Summary

Cycle Length: 90

Actuated Cycle Length: 90

Offset: 17 (19%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Yellow

Natural Cycle: 60

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated

Splits and Phases:     5: Route 83 & Naek Road



HCM Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2021 Existing Conditions

5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Naek Road Synchro 10 Report

Vernon, CT Page 2

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Traffic Volume (vph) 3 3 29 685 1667 15

Future Volume (vph) 3 3 29 685 1667 15

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Total Lost time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5

Lane Util. Factor 1.00 0.95 0.95

Frt 0.93 1.00 1.00

Flt Protected 0.98 1.00 1.00

Satd. Flow (prot) 1571 3399 3534

Flt Permitted 0.98 0.81 1.00

Satd. Flow (perm) 1571 2759 3534

Peak-hour factor, PHF 0.75 0.75 0.76 0.76 0.95 0.95

Adj. Flow (vph) 4 4 38 901 1755 16

RTOR Reduction (vph) 4 0 0 0 0 0

Lane Group Flow (vph) 4 0 0 939 1771 0

Heavy Vehicles (%) 10% 10% 6% 6% 2% 2%

Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA

Protected Phases 4 5 2 6

Permitted Phases 2

Actuated Green, G (s) 1.4 79.1 70.5

Effective Green, g (s) 1.4 79.1 70.5

Actuated g/C Ratio 0.02 0.88 0.78

Clearance Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5

Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0

Lane Grp Cap (vph) 24 2463 2768

v/s Ratio Prot c0.00 c0.02 c0.50

v/s Ratio Perm 0.31

v/c Ratio 0.17 0.38 0.64

Uniform Delay, d1 43.7 1.0 4.2

Progression Factor 1.00 0.53 1.84

Incremental Delay, d2 3.3 0.1 0.8

Delay (s) 47.1 0.6 8.6

Level of Service D A A

Approach Delay (s) 47.1 0.6 8.6

Approach LOS D A A

Intersection Summary

HCM 2000 Control Delay 6.0 HCM 2000 Level of Service A

HCM 2000 Volume to Capacity ratio 0.62

Actuated Cycle Length (s) 90.0 Sum of lost time (s) 12.6

Intersection Capacity Utilization 60.3% ICU Level of Service B

Analysis Period (min) 15

c    Critical Lane Group



Queues 2021 Existing Conditions

5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Evening Peak Hour

Naek Road Synchro 10 Report

Vernon, CT Page 1

Lane Group EBL NBL NBT SBT

Lane Configurations

Traffic Volume (vph) 25 33 2011 1169

Future Volume (vph) 25 33 2011 1169

Lane Group Flow (vph) 98 0 2129 1224

Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA

Protected Phases 4 5 2 6

Permitted Phases 2

Detector Phase 4 5 2 6

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 5.0 20.0 20.0

Minimum Split (s) 11.0 8.1 25.5 25.5

Total Split (s) 19.0 14.0 71.0 57.0

Total Split (%) 21.1% 15.6% 78.9% 63.3%

Yellow Time (s) 3.0 3.0 4.5 4.5

All-Red Time (s) 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.0

Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Lost Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5

Lead/Lag Lead Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes

Recall Mode None Min C-Min C-Min

v/c Ratio 0.45 0.79 0.47

Control Delay 22.9 13.9 11.5

Queue Delay 0.0 1.1 0.0

Total Delay 22.9 15.0 11.5

Queue Length 50th (ft) 18 358 338

Queue Length 95th (ft) 46 534 383

Internal Link Dist (ft) 410 481 781

Turn Bay Length (ft)

Base Capacity (vph) 337 2706 2607

Starvation Cap Reductn 0 326 0

Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0

Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0

Reduced v/c Ratio 0.29 0.89 0.47

Intersection Summary

Cycle Length: 90

Actuated Cycle Length: 90

Offset: 17 (19%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Yellow

Natural Cycle: 60

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated

Splits and Phases:     5: Route 83 & Naek Road



HCM Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2021 Existing Conditions

5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Evening Peak Hour

Naek Road Synchro 10 Report

Vernon, CT Page 2

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Traffic Volume (vph) 25 49 33 2011 1169 18

Future Volume (vph) 25 49 33 2011 1169 18

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Total Lost time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5

Lane Util. Factor 1.00 0.95 0.95

Frt 0.91 1.00 1.00

Flt Protected 0.98 1.00 1.00

Satd. Flow (prot) 1701 3571 3566

Flt Permitted 0.98 0.91 1.00

Satd. Flow (perm) 1701 3263 3566

Peak-hour factor, PHF 0.75 0.75 0.96 0.96 0.97 0.97

Adj. Flow (vph) 33 65 34 2095 1205 19

RTOR Reduction (vph) 60 0 0 0 1 0

Lane Group Flow (vph) 38 0 0 2129 1223 0

Heavy Vehicles (%) 0% 0% 1% 1% 1% 1%

Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA

Protected Phases 4 5 2 6

Permitted Phases 2

Actuated Green, G (s) 6.9 73.6 65.0

Effective Green, g (s) 6.9 73.6 65.0

Actuated g/C Ratio 0.08 0.82 0.72

Clearance Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5

Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0

Lane Grp Cap (vph) 130 2687 2575

v/s Ratio Prot c0.02 c0.05 0.34

v/s Ratio Perm c0.60

v/c Ratio 0.29 0.79 0.48

Uniform Delay, d1 39.2 4.2 5.3

Progression Factor 1.00 2.26 1.92

Incremental Delay, d2 1.3 1.3 0.5

Delay (s) 40.5 10.9 10.7

Level of Service D B B

Approach Delay (s) 40.5 10.9 10.7

Approach LOS D B B

Intersection Summary

HCM 2000 Control Delay 11.7 HCM 2000 Level of Service B

HCM 2000 Volume to Capacity ratio 0.78

Actuated Cycle Length (s) 90.0 Sum of lost time (s) 12.6

Intersection Capacity Utilization 92.7% ICU Level of Service F

Analysis Period (min) 15

c    Critical Lane Group



Queues 2022 No-Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Page 1 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Lane Group EBL NBL NBT SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 3 29 690 1678
Future Volume (vph) 3 29 690 1678
Lane Group Flow (vph) 8 0 946 1782
Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 4 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 2
Detector Phase 4 5 2 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 5.0 20.0 20.0
Minimum Split (s) 11.0 8.1 25.5 25.5
Total Split (s) 19.0 14.0 71.0 57.0
Total Split (%) 21.1% 15.6% 78.9% 63.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.0 3.0 4.5 4.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Recall Mode None Min C-Min C-Min
v/c Ratio 0.06 0.37 0.62
Control Delay 31.5 0.8 7.8
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 31.5 0.8 7.8
Queue Length 50th (ft) 2 0 186
Queue Length 95th (ft) 13 26 566
Internal Link Dist (ft) 410 481 781
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph) 265 2545 2896
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 48
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.03 0.37 0.63

Intersection Summary
Cycle Length: 90
Actuated Cycle Length: 90
Offset: 17 (19%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Yellow
Natural Cycle: 60
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated

Splits and Phases:     5: Route 83 & Naek Road



HCM Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2022 No-Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Page 2 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 3 3 29 690 1678 15
Future Volume (vph) 3 3 29 690 1678 15
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Total Lost time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 0.95 0.95
Frt 0.93 1.00 1.00
Flt Protected 0.98 1.00 1.00
Satd. Flow (prot) 1571 3399 3534
Flt Permitted 0.98 0.81 1.00
Satd. Flow (perm) 1571 2758 3534
Peak-hour factor, PHF 0.75 0.75 0.76 0.76 0.95 0.95
Adj. Flow (vph) 4 4 38 908 1766 16
RTOR Reduction (vph) 4 0 0 0 0 0
Lane Group Flow (vph) 4 0 0 946 1782 0
Heavy Vehicles (%) 10% 10% 6% 6% 2% 2%
Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 4 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 2
Actuated Green, G (s) 1.4 79.1 70.5
Effective Green, g (s) 1.4 79.1 70.5
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.02 0.88 0.78
Clearance Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0
Lane Grp Cap (vph) 24 2463 2768
v/s Ratio Prot c0.00 c0.02 c0.50
v/s Ratio Perm 0.31
v/c Ratio 0.17 0.38 0.64
Uniform Delay, d1 43.7 1.0 4.3
Progression Factor 1.00 0.53 1.90
Incremental Delay, d2 3.3 0.1 0.9
Delay (s) 47.1 0.6 9.0
Level of Service D A A
Approach Delay (s) 47.1 0.6 9.0
Approach LOS D A A

Intersection Summary
HCM 2000 Control Delay 6.2 HCM 2000 Level of Service A
HCM 2000 Volume to Capacity ratio 0.62
Actuated Cycle Length (s) 90.0 Sum of lost time (s) 12.6
Intersection Capacity Utilization 60.6% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15
c    Critical Lane Group



Queues 2022 No-Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Evening Peak Hour

Page 1 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Lane Group EBL NBL NBT SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 25 33 2025 1177
Future Volume (vph) 25 33 2025 1177
Lane Group Flow (vph) 100 0 2143 1232
Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 4 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 2
Detector Phase 4 5 2 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 5.0 20.0 20.0
Minimum Split (s) 11.0 8.1 25.5 25.5
Total Split (s) 19.0 14.0 71.0 57.0
Total Split (%) 21.1% 15.6% 78.9% 63.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.0 3.0 4.5 4.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Recall Mode None Min C-Min C-Min
v/c Ratio 0.46 0.79 0.47
Control Delay 22.8 13.9 11.9
Queue Delay 0.0 1.0 0.0
Total Delay 22.8 15.0 11.9
Queue Length 50th (ft) 18 343 360
Queue Length 95th (ft) 46 539 385
Internal Link Dist (ft) 410 481 781
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph) 339 2706 2607
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 303 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.29 0.89 0.47

Intersection Summary
Cycle Length: 90
Actuated Cycle Length: 90
Offset: 17 (19%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Yellow
Natural Cycle: 60
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated

Splits and Phases:     5: Route 83 & Naek Road



HCM Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2022 No-Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Evening Peak Hour

Page 2 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 25 50 33 2025 1177 18
Future Volume (vph) 25 50 33 2025 1177 18
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Total Lost time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 0.95 0.95
Frt 0.91 1.00 1.00
Flt Protected 0.98 1.00 1.00
Satd. Flow (prot) 1700 3571 3566
Flt Permitted 0.98 0.91 1.00
Satd. Flow (perm) 1700 3262 3566
Peak-hour factor, PHF 0.75 0.75 0.96 0.96 0.97 0.97
Adj. Flow (vph) 33 67 34 2109 1213 19
RTOR Reduction (vph) 62 0 0 0 1 0
Lane Group Flow (vph) 38 0 0 2143 1231 0
Heavy Vehicles (%) 0% 0% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 4 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 2
Actuated Green, G (s) 6.9 73.6 65.0
Effective Green, g (s) 6.9 73.6 65.0
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.08 0.82 0.72
Clearance Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0
Lane Grp Cap (vph) 130 2686 2575
v/s Ratio Prot c0.02 c0.05 0.35
v/s Ratio Perm c0.60
v/c Ratio 0.29 0.80 0.48
Uniform Delay, d1 39.2 4.3 5.3
Progression Factor 1.00 2.23 1.98
Incremental Delay, d2 1.3 1.3 0.6
Delay (s) 40.5 10.9 11.1
Level of Service D B B
Approach Delay (s) 40.5 10.9 11.1
Approach LOS D B B

Intersection Summary
HCM 2000 Control Delay 11.8 HCM 2000 Level of Service B
HCM 2000 Volume to Capacity ratio 0.78
Actuated Cycle Length (s) 90.0 Sum of lost time (s) 12.6
Intersection Capacity Utilization 93.1% ICU Level of Service F
Analysis Period (min) 15
c    Critical Lane Group



Queues 2022 Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Page 1 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Lane Group EBL NBT SBT
Lane Group Flow (vph) 43 954 1784
v/c Ratio 0.27 0.42 0.66
Control Delay 22.6 1.5 12.8
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 22.6 1.5 12.8
Queue Length 50th (ft) 6 36 457
Queue Length 95th (ft) 27 34 582
Internal Link Dist (ft) 410 481 781
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph) 282 2298 2699
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 51
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.15 0.42 0.67

Intersection Summary



HCM Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2022 Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Morning Peak Hour

Page 2 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 8 24 35 690 1678 17
Future Volume (vph) 8 24 35 690 1678 17
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Total Lost time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 0.95 0.95
Frt 0.90 1.00 1.00
Flt Protected 0.99 1.00 1.00
Satd. Flow (prot) 1534 3397 3534
Flt Permitted 0.99 0.78 1.00
Satd. Flow (perm) 1534 2642 3534
Peak-hour factor, PHF 0.75 0.75 0.76 0.76 0.95 0.95
Adj. Flow (vph) 11 32 46 908 1766 18
RTOR Reduction (vph) 30 0 0 0 1 0
Lane Group Flow (vph) 13 0 0 954 1783 0
Heavy Vehicles (%) 10% 10% 6% 6% 2% 2%
Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 4 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 2
Actuated Green, G (s) 4.7 75.8 67.2
Effective Green, g (s) 4.7 75.8 67.2
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.05 0.84 0.75
Clearance Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0
Lane Grp Cap (vph) 80 2271 2638
v/s Ratio Prot c0.01 c0.03 c0.50
v/s Ratio Perm 0.33
v/c Ratio 0.16 0.42 0.68
Uniform Delay, d1 40.8 1.7 5.8
Progression Factor 1.00 0.50 1.89
Incremental Delay, d2 0.9 0.1 1.0
Delay (s) 41.7 1.0 12.1
Level of Service D A B
Approach Delay (s) 41.7 1.0 12.1
Approach LOS D A B

Intersection Summary
HCM 2000 Control Delay 8.7 HCM 2000 Level of Service A
HCM 2000 Volume to Capacity ratio 0.63
Actuated Cycle Length (s) 90.0 Sum of lost time (s) 12.6
Intersection Capacity Utilization 60.7% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15
c    Critical Lane Group



Queues 2022 Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Evening Peak Hour

Page 1 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Lane Group EBL NBL NBT SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 28 55 2025 1177
Future Volume (vph) 28 55 2025 1177
Lane Group Flow (vph) 121 0 2166 1237
Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 4 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 2
Detector Phase 4 5 2 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 5.0 20.0 20.0
Minimum Split (s) 11.0 8.1 25.5 25.5
Total Split (s) 19.0 14.0 71.0 57.0
Total Split (%) 21.1% 15.6% 78.9% 63.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.0 3.0 4.5 4.5
All-Red Time (s) 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.0
Lost Time Adjust (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Lead/Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes
Recall Mode None Min C-Min C-Min
v/c Ratio 0.51 0.87 0.49
Control Delay 22.0 16.7 14.3
Queue Delay 0.0 0.8 0.0
Total Delay 22.0 17.5 14.3
Queue Length 50th (ft) 20 268 323
Queue Length 95th (ft) 49 #568 387
Internal Link Dist (ft) 410 481 781
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph) 352 2484 2505
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 114 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.34 0.91 0.49

Intersection Summary
Cycle Length: 90
Actuated Cycle Length: 90
Offset: 17 (19%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBT, Start of Yellow
Natural Cycle: 65
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
#    95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
     Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:     5: Route 83 & Naek Road



HCM Signalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2022 Build Conditions
5: Route 83 & Naek Road Weekday Evening Peak Hour

Page 2 Synchro 10 Report
The Village at Naek Road

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 28 63 55 2025 1177 23
Future Volume (vph) 28 63 55 2025 1177 23
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Total Lost time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 0.95 0.95
Frt 0.91 1.00 1.00
Flt Protected 0.98 1.00 1.00
Satd. Flow (prot) 1696 3570 3564
Flt Permitted 0.98 0.87 1.00
Satd. Flow (perm) 1696 3092 3564
Peak-hour factor, PHF 0.75 0.75 0.96 0.96 0.97 0.97
Adj. Flow (vph) 37 84 57 2109 1213 24
RTOR Reduction (vph) 76 0 0 0 1 0
Lane Group Flow (vph) 45 0 0 2166 1236 0
Heavy Vehicles (%) 0% 0% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Turn Type Prot pm+pt NA NA
Protected Phases 4 5 2 6
Permitted Phases 2
Actuated Green, G (s) 8.7 71.8 63.2
Effective Green, g (s) 8.7 71.8 63.2
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.10 0.80 0.70
Clearance Time (s) 4.0 5.5 5.5
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0
Lane Grp Cap (vph) 163 2495 2502
v/s Ratio Prot c0.03 c0.05 0.35
v/s Ratio Perm c0.64
v/c Ratio 0.28 0.87 0.49
Uniform Delay, d1 37.7 6.0 6.1
Progression Factor 1.00 1.92 2.13
Incremental Delay, d2 0.9 2.7 0.6
Delay (s) 38.7 14.2 13.6
Level of Service D B B
Approach Delay (s) 38.7 14.2 13.6
Approach LOS D B B

Intersection Summary
HCM 2000 Control Delay 14.8 HCM 2000 Level of Service B
HCM 2000 Volume to Capacity ratio 0.84
Actuated Cycle Length (s) 90.0 Sum of lost time (s) 12.6
Intersection Capacity Utilization 109.2% ICU Level of Service H
Analysis Period (min) 15
c    Critical Lane Group



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:3

4
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-000

T
IT

L
E
 S

H
E
E
T

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

THE VILLAGE AT NAEK ROAD
NAEK ROAD
VERNON, CT

OWNER:

ARCHITECT:
SCHADLER SELNAU ASSOCIATES P.C.
5 WATERVILLE ROAD
FARMINGTON, CONNECTICUT 06032

MEP ENGINEERS:
ACORN CONSULTING ENGINEERS
P.O. BOX 311
FARMS VILLAGE PLAZA
244 FARMS VILLAGE ROAD
WEST SIMSBURY, CT 06092

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
SZEWCZAK ASSOCIATES
200 FISHER DRIVE
AVON, CONNECTICUT 06001

RASHID HAMID FAMILY PARTNERSHIP
27 NEAK ROAD
VERNON CT 06066

GARDNER & PETERSON ASSOCIATES
178 HARTFORD TURNPIKE
TOLLAND CT 06084

CIVIL ENGINEER:

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

SHEET LIST
SHEET NUMBER SHEET NAME
GENERAL
A-000 TITLE SHEET

1 OF14 IMPROVEMENT LOCATION SURVEY
2 OF14 OVERALL SITE PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT
3 OF14 EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL
4 OF14 EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL
5 OF14 SITE GRADING PLAN
6 OF14 SITE GRADING PLAN
7 OF14 UTILITY PLAN
8 OF14 UTILITY PLAN
9 OF14 LANDSCAPEING PLAN
10 OF14 LANDSCAPEING PLAN
11 OF14 EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

DETAILS
12 OF14 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
13 OF14 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
14 OF14 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
GENERAL
A-001 2 UNIT BUILDING
A-002 4 UNIT BUILDING
A-003 4 UNIT BUILDING
A-004 ABDUL WAY
A-005 NADIA WAY
A-006 SOFFIA WAY
PLANS
A-101 2 UNIT PLANS
A-102 4 UNIT PLANS
A-103 6 UNIT PLANS
ELEVATIONS
A-201 2 UNIT ELEVATIONS
A-201a 2 UNIT PERSPECTIVES
A-202 4 UNIT ELEVATIONS
A-202a 4 UNIT PERSPECTIVES
A-203 6 UNIT ELEVATIONS
A-203a 6 UNIT PERSPECTIVES
SECTIONS
A-301 TYPICAL SECTIONS

1 VILLAGE AT NAEK ROAD

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
USE GROUP:    RESIDENTIAL TOWNHOUSE

NOTE: CODE REFERENCES ARE FOR STATE OF CONNNECTICUT AND  
COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED FOR THE APPLICABLE CODES FOR THE OUTLINED 
SCOPE OF WORK AS CATEGORIZED AS RESIDENTIAL TWO-FAMILY HOUSE
2015 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE
2015 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE WITH CONNECTICUT AMENDMENTS
2015 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE WITH CONNECTICUT AMENDMENTS
2015 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE WITH CONNECTICUT 
AMENDMENTS
2015 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE WITH CONNECTICUT AMENDMENTS
2017 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE WITH CONNECTICUT AMENDMENTS
ICC/ANSI A117.1-2009  ACCESSIBLE AND USABLE BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES
ADA - AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
LOCAL ORDINANCES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES 
HAVING JURISDICTION

CONSTRUCTION TYPE:    5B

FIRE SEPERATION REQUIREMENTS TOWNHOUSE 
FIRE SEPERATION WALL 2 HOUR UL DESIGN U338
EXTERIOR WALL 1 HOUR UL DESIGN U327
ROOF ASSEMBLY 1 HOUR UL DESIGN P522

BUILDING ENVELOPE EFFICIENCY

CLIMATE ZONE 5A
FENESTRATION U FACTOR .32
GLAZED FENESTRATION SHGC NR
CEILING "R" VALUE R49
WOOD FRAME WALL "R" VALUE R20
SLAB ON GRADE "R" VALUE R10/2FT

TABLE N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2)
INSULATION AND FENESTRATION REQUIREMENTS BY COMPONENT

34 UNIT TYPE "A" @ 1,910 SF 64,940 SF TOTAL
36 UNIT TYPE "B" @ 1,588 SF 57,168 SF TOTAL
70 UNITS 122,108 SF TOTAL

2 UNIT BUILDINGS 3 BLDS 6 UNITS
4 UNIT BUILDINGS 12 BLDS. 52 UNITS
6 UNIT BUILDINGS 2 BLDS 12 UNITS

17 BLDS 70 UNITS
140 BEDROOMS

BUILDING TYPE AND AREAS

2 VILLAGE AT NAEK ROAD 2



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:3

4
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-001

2
 U

N
IT

 B
UI
L
D

IN
G

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:3

5
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-002

4
 U

N
IT

 B
UI
L
D

IN
G

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:3

5
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-003

4
 U

N
IT

 B
UI
L
D

IN
G

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:3

6
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-004

A
B

D
UL

 W
A
Y

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:3

6
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-005

N
A
D

IA
 W

A
Y

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:3

7 
P
M

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-006

S
O

F
F
IA

 W
A
Y

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE



UP

D
W

D
W

DN

191 SF

MASTER
BEDROOM

214 SF
GREAT ROOM

481 SF
GARAGE

50 SF
BATH

84 SF
MASTER BATH

44 SF

WALK
IN

CLOSET

138 SF

BEDROOM #2
DEN

CLST.

CLST.

PORCH

5
5
' -

 7
 1

/2
"

32' - 0"

114 SF

ENTRY
FOYER
AND
HALL

A-201

2

A-201

1

--

- -

OPEN 
TO 

ABOVE

8' - 0"

1

A-301

2

A-301

32' - 0"

226 SF

KITCHEN/DINING
AREA

15 SF
W/D

17 SF
PANTRY

3
1'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

2
4
' -

 0
"

5
5
' -

 7
 1

/2
"

3
1'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

64' - 0"8' - 0"

80' - 0"

21' - 11"

7' - 0" 22' - 2" 7' - 0"

21' - 11"

80' - 0"

2
4
' -

 0
"

248 SF
PATIO

A-201

2

A-201

1

--

- -

1

A-301

2

A-301

276 SF
LOFT

435 SF
OPEN TO BELOW

281 SF
LOFT

418 SF
OPEN TO BELOW

81 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW
81 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

64' - 0"

3
2
' -

 1
"

12
' -

 0
"

64' - 0"

13' - 5 1/2" 8' - 1" 20' - 11" 8' - 1" 13' - 5 1/2"

Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:4

0
 P

M

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-101

2
 U

N
IT

 P
L
A
N
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1 2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR

1/8" = 1'-0"
2 2 UNIT - SECOND FLOOR



D
W

UP

D
W

D
WD
W

A-202

1

A-202

2

- -

--

29' - 0" 32' - 0"

170 SF

MASTER
BEDROOM

193 SF
LIVING ROOM

202 SF

KITCHEN/DINING
AREA

124 SF

BEDROOM
#02/OFFICE277 SF

1 CAR GARAGE

112 SF
HALLWAY

OPEN TO 
ABOVE

OPEN TO ABOVE

50 SF
BATH

84 SF
MASTER BATH

44 SF

WALK
IN

CLOSET

254 SF

KITCHEN/DINING
AREA

15 SF
W/D

17 SF
PANTRY

31 SF

WALK
IN

CLOSET

15 SF
W/D

51 SF
BATH

84 SF
MASTER BATH

29' - 0"32' - 0"

50 SF
BATH

84 SF
MASTER BATH

44 SF

WALK
IN

CLOSET

15 SF
W/D

17 SF
PANTRY

31 SF

WALK
IN

CLOSET

15 SF
W/D

51 SF
BATH

84 SF
MASTER BATH

188 SF

MASTER
BEDROOM

OPEN TO ABOVE

326 SF
GREAT ROOM

8' - 0" 8' - 0"

138' - 0"

5
5
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

3
1'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

2
4
' -

 2
"

138' - 0"

21' - 11"

7' - 0" 22' - 2" 4' - 11 3/4"

25' - 10 1/2"

4' - 11 3/4" 22' - 2" 7' - 0"

21' - 11"34' - 1 3/4" 34' - 1 3/4"

140 SF

BEDROOM
#02/OFFICE

485 SF
Room

A-202

1

A-202

2

- -

--

BEDROOM
02/OFFICE

BELOW

283 SF
LOFT

81 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

417 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

252 SF
LOFT

29' - 1" 32' - 0"29' - 0"32' - 0"

122' - 0"

5
5
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

3
2
' -

 1
"

12
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

21' - 6 1/2"10' - 10 3/4"11' - 2 1/4"35' - 3"11' - 3 1/4"10' - 3 3/4"21' - 6 1/2"

122' - 0"

288 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

5
5
' -

 4
"

3
1'
 -

 1
0

 1
/4

"
12

' -
 0

 1
/2

"

Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

8
:4

7 
P
M

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-102

4
 U

N
IT

 P
L
A
N
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1 4 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR

1/8" = 1'-0"
2 4 UNIT - SECOND FLOOR



UP

D
W

D
W

UP

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

A-203

2

A-203

1

--- -

50 SF
BATH

83 SF
MASTER BATH

44 SF

WALK
IN

CLOSET

CLST.

CLST.

15 SF
W/D

17 SF
PANTRY

189 SF
Room

266 SF
GREAT ROOM

479 SF
2 CAR GARAGE

138 SF
BEDROOM #02

199 SF
KITCHEN.DINING

117 SF
ENTRY HALL

169 SF

MASTER
BEDROOM

165 SF
LIVING ROOM

223 SF

KITCHEN/DINING
AREA

113 SF
HALLWAY

OPEN TO 
ABOVE

OPEN TO ABOVE

31 SF

WALK
IN

CLOSET

15 SF
W/D

51 SF
BATH

84 SF
MASTER BATH

CLST.

CLST.

OPEN TO 
ABOVE

OPEN TO 
ABOVE

274 SF
1 CAR GARAGE

123 SF

BEDROOM
#02/OFFICE

196' - 0"

8' - 0" 32' - 0" 29' - 0" 29' - 0" 29' - 0" 29' - 0" 32' - 0" 8' - 0"

5
5
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

2
3
' -

 1
1"

3
1'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

196' - 0"

21' - 11"

7' - 0" 22' - 2" 5' - 0"

25' - 10"

5' - 0" 22' - 2" 5' - 0"

25' - 10"

5' - 0" 22' - 2" 7' - 0"

21' - 11"34' - 2" 32' - 2" 34' - 2"

A-203

2

A-203

1

--- -

81 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

427 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

125 SF

BEDROOM #02
BELOW

125 SF

BEDROOM #02
BELOW

253 SF
LOFT/OFFICE

282 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

275 SF
LOFT/OFFICE

3
2
' -

 1
"

12
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

5
5
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

180' - 0"

32' - 0" 29' - 0" 29' - 0" 29' - 0" 29' - 0" 32' - 0"

10' - 5 1/2" 8' - 1" 13' - 5 1/2"10' - 8 3/4"18' - 3 1/4"17' - 10 1/2"22' - 3"17' - 10 1/2"18' - 3 1/4"8' - 1"13' - 5 1/2" 10' - 5 1/2" 10' - 8 3/4"

180' - 0"

80 SF

OPEN
TO

BELOW

Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
0

2
 P

M

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-103

6
 U

N
IT

 P
L
A
N
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1 6 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR

1/8" = 1'-0"
2 6 UNIT - SECOND FLOOR



2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2 UNIT - SECOND
FLOOR
10' - 0"

2 UNIT - T.O.P.
18' - 0"

2

A-301

1X8 PVC FASCIA

FIBERGLASS SINGLE ROOFING

WHITE ALUMINUM "K" STYLE GUTTERS

VINYL INSULATED DOUBLE 
HUNG WINDOWS

DECORATIVE NON VENTED PVC 
LOUVER

1/2" PVC PANELING

1X4 PVC TRIM BOARDS

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING

1X6 PVC CORNER BOARDS

2 HOUR RATED STRUCTURALLY INDEPENDENT 
FIRE SEPERATION WALL BETWEEN ALL UNITS. 
UL DESIGN ASSEMBLY U336

INSULATED GARAGE DOOR

1X10 PVC SKIRT BOARD

INSULATED VINYL 
DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS

2 GARAGE UNIT2 CAR GARAGE UNIT

7
12

7
12

PREHUNG FIBERGLASS 
INSULATED ENTRY DOOR

2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2 UNIT - SECOND
FLOOR
10' - 0"

2 UNIT - T.O.P.
18' - 0"

2

A-301

2 CAR GARAGE UNIT2 CAR GARAGE UNIT

9

12

1X8 PVC FASCIA

FIBERGLASS SINGLE ROOFING

WHITE ALUMINUM "K" STYLE GUTTERS

VINYL INSULATED DOUBLE 
HUNG WINDOWS

DECORATIVE NON VENTED PVC 
LOUVER

1/2" PVC PANELING

1X4 PVC TRIM BOARDS

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING

1X6 PVC CORNER BOARDS

VINYL INSULATED FIXED 
WINDOWS

1X8 PVC RAKE TRIM

INSULATED METAL DOOR

1X10 PVC SKIRT BOARD

2 HOUR RATED STRUCTURALLY INDEPENDENT 
FIRE SEPERATION WALL BETWEEN ALL UNITS. 
UL DESIGN ASSEMBLY U336

Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
12

 P
M

1/
4
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-201

2
 U

N
IT

 E
L
E
V

A
T
IO

N
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 2 UNIT - FRONT ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 2 UNIT - REAR ELEVATION



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
17

 P
M

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-201a

2
 U

N
IT

 P
E
R

S
P
E
C
T
IV

E
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1 2 UNIT FRONT

2 2 UNIT REAR



2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2 UNIT - SECOND
FLOOR
10' - 0"

2 UNIT - T.O.P.
18' - 0"

1X8 PVC FASCIA

FIBERGLASS SINGLE ROOFING

WHITE ALUMINUM "K" STYLE GUTTERS

DECORATIVE NON VENTED PVC 
LOUVER

1/2" PVC PANELING

1X4 PVC TRIM BOARDS

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING

1X6 PVC CORNER BOARDS

INSULATED GARAGE DOOR

1X10 PVC SKIRT BOARD

INSULATED VINYL 
DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS

7
12

PREHUNG FIBERGLASS 
INSULATED ENTRY DOOR

INSULATED GARAGE DOOR

1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT2 CAR GARAGE UNIT

2 HOUR RATED STRUCTURALLY 
INDEPENDENT FIRE SEPERATION WALL 
BETWEEN ALL UNITS. 
UL DESIGN ASSEMBLY U336
TYPICAL BETWEEN ALL UNITS

2 CAR GARAGE UNIT

2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2 UNIT - SECOND
FLOOR
10' - 0"

2 UNIT - T.O.P.
18' - 0"

9
12

1X8 PVC FASCIA

FIBERGLASS SINGLE ROOFING

WHITE ALUMINUM "K" STYLE GUTTERS

VINYL INSULATED DOUBLE 
HUNG WINDOWS

DECORATIVE NON VENTED PVC 
LOUVER

1/2" PVC PANELING

1X4 PVC TRIM BOARDS

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING

1X6 PVC CORNER BOARDS

VINYL INSULATED FIXED WINDOWS

1X8 PVC RAKE TRIM

INSULATED METAL DOOR

1X10 PVC SKIRT BOARD

2 HOUR RATED STRUCTURALLY 
INDEPENDENT FIRE SEPERATION WALL 
BETWEEN ALL UNITS. 
UL DESIGN ASSEMBLY U336
TYPICAL BETWEEN ALL UNITS

1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT2 CAR GARAGE UNIT 2 CAR GARAGE UNIT

Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
2
2
 P

M

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-202

4
 U

N
IT

 E
L
E
V

A
T
IO

N
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1 4 UNIT FRONT ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
2 4 UNIT REAR ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

4 UNIT FRONT ELEVATION GRADE
CHANGE



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
2
8
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-202a

4
 U

N
IT

 P
E
R

S
P
E
C
T
IV

E
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1 4 UNIT FRONT

2 4 UNIT REAR



1X8 PVC FASCIA

FIBERGLASS SINGLE ROOFING

WHITE ALUMINUM "K" STYLE GUTTERS

DECORATIVE NON VENTED PVC 
LOUVER

1/2" PVC PANELING

1X4 PVC TRIM BOARDS

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING

1X6 PVC CORNER BOARDS

INSULATED VINYL 
DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS

7
12

PREHUNG FIBERGLASS 
INSULATED ENTRY DOOR

INSULATED GARAGE DOOR

2 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT

2 HOUR RATED STRUCTURALLY 
INDEPENDENT FIRE SEPERATION WALL 
BETWEEN ALL UNITS. 
UL DESIGN ASSEMBLY U336
TYPICAL BETWEEN ALL UNITS

1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT

FIBERGLASS SINGLE ROOFING

WHITE ALUMINUM "K" STYLE GUTTERS

VINYL INSULATED DOUBLE 
HUNG WINDOWS

DECORATIVE NON VENTED PVC 
LOUVER

1/2" PVC PANELING

1X4 PVC TRIM BOARDS

VINYL CLAPBOARD SIDING

1X6 PVC CORNER BOARDS

VINYL INSULATED FIXED WINDOWS

1X8 PVC RAKE TRIM

INSULATED METAL DOOR

1X10 PVC SKIRT BOARD

2 HOUR RATED STRUCTURALLY 
INDEPENDENT FIRE SEPERATION WALL 
BETWEEN ALL UNITS. 
UL DESIGN ASSEMBLY U336
TYPICAL BETWEEN ALL UNITS

1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT1 CAR GARAGE UNIT2 CAR GARAGE UNIT

Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
3
4
 P

M

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-203

6
 U

N
IT

 E
L
E
V

A
T
IO

N
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1/8" = 1'-0"
1 6 UNIT - FRONT ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
2 6 UNIT - REAR ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
3 6 UNIT - FRONT GRADE CHANGE



Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
4
2
 P

M
S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-203a

6
 U

N
IT

 P
E
R

S
P
E
C
T
IV

E
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1 6 UNIT FRONT

2 6 UNIT REAR



2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2 UNIT - SECOND
FLOOR
10' - 0"

2 UNIT - T.O.P.
18' - 0"

2

A-301

191 SF

MASTER
BEDROOM214 SF

GREAT ROOM

TYPICAL  LOFT FLOOR STRUCTURE 
FINISH FLOORING (WOOD OR TILE)
3/4" T&G PLYWOOD SHEATHING
TJI FLOOR JOISTS 
1/2" GYPSUM WALL BOARD

TYP. INSULATED VINYL WINDOWS W/ LOW 
"E" INSULATED GLASS
-PROVIDE ALUMINUM HEAD / DRIP & SILL 
PAN FLASHING TYP.
-APPLY FLASHING TAPE & BUILDING WRAP 
IN OVERLAPPING WATERTIGHT  METHOD 
PER ALL MANUF. INSTRUCTIONS
-PROVIDE CAULK/SEALANT ON ALL 
WINDOW FLANGES & ALL TRIM / WINDOW 
UNIT INTERSECTIONS.
-SEAL AROUND JAMBS & ROUGH OPENING 
USING LOW EXPANSION FOAM SEALANT 
-SEE WINDOW SCHEDULE FOR ALL SIZING 
AND ADDITIONAL REQS.

TYP. ROOF ASSEMBLY
30 YR. ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLES
30 LB. FELT ROOFING PAPER
ICE & WATER SHIELD UP MIN. 5'-0" EAVES 
VALLEYS & 2'-6" UP VALLEYS 
5/8"- EXTERIOR GRADE PLYWOOD SHEATHING 
& CLIPS (SEE STRUCTURALS FOR ALL REQS & 
LOCATIONS
WOOD ROOF TRUSSES OR RAFTERS (SEE 
STRUCTURAL DWGS.)
R-49 BLOW IN BATT INSULATION W/ CONT. 
POLY VAPOR BARRIER (INTERIOR SIDE)
5/8" FIRE CODE GYP. BD. 

TYP. EXT. WALL CONSTRUCTION
VINYL SIDING & TRIM 
1" RIGID INSULATION (R-5)
1/2" O.S.B. STRUCTURAL SHEATHING
"TYVEK" OR EQUAL HOUSEWRAP
2x6 WOOD STUD @ 24" O.C.
3 1/2" FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION (R-13)
VAPOR BARRIER
5/8" GYP. BD.

FOUNDATION AND SLAB ON GRADE
4" REINFOECED COCNTRETE SLAB
8" REINFORCED CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL
.6MIL VAPOR BARRIER
2" R10 RIGID INSULATION 
6" OF CRUSHED STONE
COMPACTED NATIVE SOLS

2 HOUR RATED STRUCTURALLY INDEPENDENT 
FIRE SEPERATION WALL BETWEEN ALL UNITS. 
UL DESIGN ASSEMBLY U336
(2) 1" GYPSUM SHAFT LINER
METAL STUDS AT 24" O.C.
2X4 WOOD STUDS BOTH SIDES
METAL CLIPS
3" MINERAL WOOL INSULATION
5/8" FIRE RATED GYPSUM BOARD

A-301
3

A-301
4

2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2 UNIT - SECOND
FLOOR
10' - 0"

2 UNIT - T.O.P.
18' - 0"

1

A-301

481 SF
GARAGE

4
' -

 4
"

214 SF
GREAT ROOM 226 SF

KITCHEN/DINING
AREA

TYP. INSULATED VINYL WINDOWS W/ LOW 
"E" INSULATED GLASS
-PROVIDE ALUMINUM HEAD / DRIP & SILL 
PAN FLASHING TYP.
-APPLY FLASHING TAPE & BUILDING WRAP 
IN OVERLAPPING WATERTIGHT  METHOD 
PER ALL MANUF. INSTRUCTIONS
-PROVIDE CAULK/SEALANT ON ALL 
WINDOW FLANGES & ALL TRIM / WINDOW 
UNIT INTERSECTIONS.
-SEAL AROUND JAMBS & ROUGH OPENING 
USING LOW EXPANSION FOAM SEALANT 
-SEE WINDOW SCHEDULE FOR ALL SIZING 
AND ADDITIONAL REQS.

TYP. ROOF ASSEMBLY
30 YR. ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLES
30 LB. FELT ROOFING PAPER
ICE & WATER SHIELD UP MIN. 5'-0" EAVES 
VALLEYS & 2'-6" UP VALLEYS 
5/8"- EXTERIOR GRADE PLYWOOD SHEATHING 
& CLIPS (SEE STRUCTURALS FOR ALL REQS & 
LOCATIONS
WOOD ROOF TRUSSES OR RAFTERS (SEE 
STRUCTURAL DWGS.)
R-49 BLOW IN BATT INSULATION W/ CONT. 
POLY VAPOR BARRIER (INTERIOR SIDE)
5/8" FIRE CODE GYP. BD. 

TYP. EXT. WALL CONSTRUCTION
VINYL SIDING & TRIM 
1" RIGID INSULATION (R-5)
1/2" O.S.B. STRUCTURAL SHEATHING
"TYVEK" OR EQUAL HOUSEWRAP
2x6 WOOD STUD @ 24" O.C.
3 1/2" FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION (R-13)
VAPOR BARRIER
5/8" GYP. BD.

FOUNDATION AND SLAB ON GRADE
4" REINFOECED COCNTRETE SLAB
8" REINFORCED CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL
.6MIL VAPOR BARRIER
2" R10 RIGID INSULATION 
6" OF CRUSHED STONE
COMPACTED NATIVE SOLS

PROVIDE CONTINUOUS HIGH 
DENSITY R-10 RIGID 
INSULATION 2'-0" DEPTH 
TYP. UNDER ALL SLABS. 
SEAL ALL JOINTS TYP. PER 
MANUF. RECOMMENDATION

TYP. TRUSS/ROOF ASSEMBLY
30 YR. ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLES
30 LB. FELT ROOFING PAPER
ICE & WATER SHIELD UP MIN. 5'-0" EAVES 
VALLEYS & 2'-6" UP VALLEYS
5/8"- EXTERIOR GRADE PLYWOOD SHEATHING 
& CLIPS (SEE STRUCTURALS FOR ALL REQS & 
LOCATIONS
WOOD ROOF TRUSSES OR RAFTERS (SEE 
STRUCTURAL DWGS.)
R-49 BLOW IN BATT INSULATION W/ CONT. 
POLY VAPOR BARRIER (INTERIOR SIDE)
5/8" FIRE CODE GYP. BD. 

1X8 PVC FASCIA

PERF. VINYL SOFFIT W/ 
CONT. "J" CHANNELS

1" FOAM BOARD INSULATION
AT ALL HEADERS - TYP.

TYP. EXT. WALL CONSTRUCTION
VINYL SIDING & TRIM 
1/2" O.S.B. STRUCTURAL SHEATHING
"TYVEK" OR EQUAL HOUSEWRAP
2x6 WOOD STUD @ 24" O.C.
3 1/2" FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION (R-20)
VAPOR BARRIER
5/8" GYP. BD.

4" MIN. REINFORCED CONCRETE 
SLAB. 

PROVIDE VAPOR BARRIER 
BET. SLAB & GRAVEL .SEE 
SPECS. FOR MORE INFO. 

THERMA-TRU INSULATED FIBERGLASS 
FRENCH DOOR WITH DOUBLE 
INUDLATED GLASS WITH INTERANL 15 
LIGHT GRIDS

2 UNIT - FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2 UNIT - SECOND
FLOOR
10' - 0"

5/8" F.C. GYP. BD ATTACHED TO  UNDERSIDE 
OF  ROOF SHEATHING. EXTEND 5/8" GYPSUM 
BOARD FIRE PROTECTION AT A  MIN. 4'-0" PAST 
FIRE WALL IN BOTH DIRECTIONS. MAINTAIN 
STAGGERED JOINTS IN SHEATHING AS REQUIRED 
FOR STRUCTURAL REQS.
TAPE/MUD & FIRE CAULK ALL SEAMS & JOINTS 
TYP. @ ALL RATED ASSEMBLIES

TYPICAL TRUSS/ROOF ASSEMBLY- UL DES. #P522
FIBERGLASS/ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLES
15 LB. FELT ROOFING PAPER
ICE & WATER SHIELD UP MIN. 3'-0" EAVES VALLEYS
5/8" EXTERIOR GRADE PLYWOOD SHEATHING
ROOF TRUSSES (SEE STRUCTURAL DWGS.)
R-49 BLOWN-IN INSULATION W/ POLY VAPOR BARRIER
1/2" RESILIENT FURRING CHANNELS
5/8" FIRE CODE GYP. BD.

2 HOUR RATED FIRE WALL - UL DESIGN #U336
PROVIDE CONTINUOUS FIRE WALL TO UNDERSIDE
OF ROOF SHEATHING
2 LAYERS 1" FIRE CODE GYPSUM WALLBOARD
2" H METAL STUDS SPACED 24" O.C. W/ STEEL 
TRACK RUNNERS TOP & BOTTOM, INTERMEDIATE 
2"  ALUMINUM ANGLE CLIPS AT ALL STEEL & 
WOOD STUDS (3 CLIPS PER STUD MIN. & NO 
GREATER THAN 5'-0" O.C. APART VERTICALLY
3/4" AIR SPACE
3 1/2" STRUCTURAL LOAD BEARING WOOD STUDS
AT 16" O.C.
3 1/2" SOUND ATTENUATION BATT INSULATION
5/8" FIRE RATED GYP. BD.
SEE UL ASSEMBLY DESCRIPTION FOR MORE 
INFO. & SPECIFIC REQS.

MAINTAIN ALL FIRE RATED MEMBRANE 
CONTINUITY- CONT. LAYER OF 5/8" F.C. 
GYP. CEILING ON 1/2" RESILIENT 
CHANNELS AT BOTTOM OF ALL RATED 
TRUSS ROOF ASSEMBLIES TYP.
G.G. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE &  
PROVIDE ALL SOFFITS & SUSPENDED 
CEILINGS IN ADDITION TO P522 
ASSEMBLY AS REQ. FOR THE 
COORDINATION & CONCEALMENT OF 
THE MULTIPLE TRADES' WORK. 

PRESSURE TREATED DOUBLE SILL 
PLATES & STRUCTURAL ANCHOR 
BOLTS TYP.
SEE STRUCTURAL DWGS FOR ALL 
REQS. 

PROVIDE ALL FIRE BLOCKING AS 
REQUIRED BY CODE AND ALL 
AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION

PROVIIDE EXTRA 5/8" F.C. GYP. 
BD ATTACHED TO  UNDERSIDE 
OF  ROOF SHEATHING & IN 
BETWEEN ROOF TRUSSES TO 
COMPLY WITH 4'-0" MIN. REQS. 
PAST FIREWALL IN BOTH 
DIRECTIONS.

4" REINFORCED CONCRETE SLAB

2" RIGID INSULATION TO EXTEND 
24" HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL 
EACH SIDE

MIN. 6" OF COMPLACTED 
CRUSHED STONE 

12" REINFORCED CONCRETE 
FOUNDATION WALL

KEYED WALL INTO FOORING

REINFORCED CONCRETE 
FOOTING

Job.No.

D
A
T
E
 I
S
S
U
E
D

:
S
C
A
L
E
:

hs
a−

ar
ch

it
ec

ts
.c

om

Sc
ha

dl
er

 S
el

na
u 

as
so

ci
at

es
, p

.c
.

5 
w

at
er

vi
lle

 r
oa

d,
  f

ar
m

in
gt

on
, c

t 
  0

60
32

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
re

 −
pl

an
ni

ng
 −

in
te

ri
or

s

(8
60

) 6
77

−9
62

0

10
/4

/2
0

2
1 

2
:2

9:
4
3
 P

M

A
s
 i
nd

ic
at

e
d

S
:\

S
ha

re
d
 F

o
ld

e
rs

\n
e
w
 s

e
rv

e
r 

lo
c
at

io
n\

C
O

M
P
UT

E
R

 I
N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
\c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

\R
as

hi
d
 H

am
id

 F
am

ily
 L

T
D

 P
ar

tn
e
rs

hi
p
\D

D
\N

ae
k
 R

o
ad

 C
o
nd

o
s

Un
it
 P

la
ns

 R
E
V

IS
E
D

 0
2
.r

vt

YYYY-XXXX

A-301

T
Y
P
IC

A
L
 S

E
C
T
IO

N
S

0
9
/
2
4
/
2
0

2
1

T
H
E
 V

IL
L
A
G

E
 A

T
 N

A
E
K
 R

O
A
D

V
E
R

N
O

N
, 
C
T

REVISION

NO DESC DATE

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 UNIT TYPE 1 - SECTION 01

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 UNIT TYPE 01 SECTION 02

3/4" = 1'-0"
3 UL U356 1 HR EXTERIOR WALL

3/4" = 1'-0"
4 UL U336 2 HR SEPARATION WALL



STAFF COMMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE 

TOWN PLANNER 
 

55 West Main St., VERNON, CT 06066-3291 
(860) 870-3640  

gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 
 
 

TOWN OF VERNON 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
FROM:  George K. McGregor, AICP, Town Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PZ 2021-19, Village at Naek Road 
 
DATE:  January 20, 2022 
 
 
Request and Background 
An Application of Rashid Hamid for a Site Plan and Special Permits to allow a +-70-unit multi-family 
development on multiple parcels located at 291 and 293 Talcottville Rd. (Assessor ID: Map 3 Block 4 
Parcels 9A & 9E) and at 27, 32, 37, 38, and 46 Naek Rd. (Assessor ID: Map 3 Block 4 Parcels 008-8, 7,4, 6, 
5). Specials Permits requested from the Planned Development Zone-Gerber Farm zoning district (PDZ) 
include Section 4.24.4.3.2 (multi-family units); 4.24.3.15.1 (more than 40 off street parking spaces); 
4.24.4.3.15.2 (proposed structures within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section 4.24.4.3.15.3 
(proposed parking within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section 4.24.4.3.15.4 (aggregate square 
footage in excess of 25,000 sq. ft.); Section 4.24.4.3.15.9 (a development having less than the required 
yards).  

 
Village at Naek Road Location 

 



PZC 2021-19, Village at Naek Road 2 
January 20, 2022 
 
 

The Village at Naek Road proposes 70 town-house style, attached multifamily apartment units. The units 
are two-bedroom, garage homes, with the interior units hosting a one car garage and the end units a 
two-car garage. The units also contain a small outside patio area. Elevations submitted by the applicant: 
 

 
 
The Site Plan shows the project on each side of Naek Rd. at the end of the Naek Rd. cul-de-sac, with 18 
units on the north side; 52 on the south side. The units are set mostly in blocks of 4 units. Stormwater, 
landscaping, additional surface parking, and a sidewalk along the north side of Naek Rd. are also 
depicted on the plan. A central trash area is included for the sanitation needs of the project. 
 
The development will be in proximity to the Hockanum River, a sensitive natural amenity for the Vernon 
community.  
 
The Project proposes to construct an approximately 2,000 linear feet, stone dust with limited 
boardwalk, section of the Hockanum River Linear Park, connecting Trail Run to Hockanum Blvd. In 
addition, the Village at Naek has offered an 8-space public parking area/trailhead at the terminus of 
Naek Rd.  
 
There is a small portion of Naek Road (essentially the bulbs of the cul-de-sac) which are not in the public 
right of way; the Applicant desires to dedicate those areas to the town to ensure the entire cul-de-sac is 
a public street. 
 



PZC 2021-19, Village at Naek Road 3 
January 20, 2022 
 
 

 



PZC 2021-19, Village at Naek Road 4 
January 20, 2022 
 
 

Special Permit Review  
 
Section 4.24.4.3.2 (multi-family units); 4.24.3.15.1 (more than 40 off street parking spaces); 
4.24.4.3.15.2 (proposed structures within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section 4.24.4.3.15.3 
(proposed parking within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section 4.24.4.3.15.4 (aggregate square 
footage in excess of 25,000 sq. ft.); Section 4.24.4.3.15.9 (a development having less than the required 
yards). 
 
The PDZ zoning district provides that all projects must receive special permit and site plan approval. 
Specific special permits include: 
 

1. Section 4.24.4.3.2 – to allow multi-family uses. 
2. Section 4.24.4.3.15.1 – when more than 40 off-street parking spaces are required. 
3. Section 4.24.4.3.15.2 – for a structure within 200 feet of a residential structure. 
4. Section 4.24.4.3.15.3 – for off-street parking within 200 feet of a residential structure. 
5. Section 4.24.4.3.15.4 – when aggregate square footage exceeds 25,000. 
6. Section 4.24.4.3.15.9 – to permit a residential development to have less than the required yards 

(reduction is permitted when three or more community amenities are offered). 
 
When approving special permits, the Commission must find that the application meets the relevant 
general special permit criteria of Section 17.3.1, specifically: 
 

17.3.1.1 It shall not create a hazardous condition relative to public health and safety; 
 
17.3.1.2 It shall be compatible with neighboring uses; 
 
17.3.1.3 It shall not create a nuisance; 
 
17.3.1.4 It shall not hinder the future sound development of the community; 
 
17.3.1.5 It shall conform to all applicable sections of this ordinance; 
 

Staff finds that these thresholds have been met by the Application for special permits above listed as 1-
6.  
 
For the reduction in required yards (4.24.4.3.15.9), three or more community amenities shall be offered 
from a long list of features including, but not limited to: parks, fountains, play areas, landscaped 
gardens, walking trails, etc…The Commission must find: 
 

• The amenity enhances the community 
• The amenity is designed to stimulate pedestrian activity 
• The spaces are connected to a pedestrian network  
• The spaces are both designed and useable by community members 

 



PZC 2021-19, Village at Naek Road 5 
January 20, 2022 
 
 

The project offers a +-2,000-foot trail extension within a conservation easement and connections to the 
development; a public parking area for trail access; and a 450 ft. off-site extension of the public side 
walk along Naek Rd. up to the intersection at Talcottville Rd. 
 
Staff finds that this satisfies the community amenity offering requirement. 
 
 
Other Agency Review 
 
Inland Wetlands Commission. On June 22, 2001, The Inlands Wetlands Commission approved a 
wetlands re-designation and wetlands permit for activity in a regulated area for the village of Naek. 
There were no extraordinary conditions attached; simply conformance with the approved site plan. The 
site plan reviewed by the IWC is essentially identical to the one submitted for the Site Plan and Special 
Permit Review. Discussion during that review centered upon wetland proximity, trail planning, and site 
grading impacts. In response to the Town Engineer, Wetlands Agent, and the IWC, revisions were made 
which satisfied the commission and led to the approval.  
 
Design Review Commission. On January 5, 2022, the Design Review recommended approval of the 
architectural design submitted by the applicant. The approval letter is attached to this memo. 
 
Traffic Authority. On January 13, 2002, the Traffic Authority recommended approval of the Site Plan as 
submitted by the applicant, pursuant to revisions related to additional turn-around areas. 
 
Hockanum River Linear Park Committee. A referral memorandum dated January 12, 2022 was 
submitted by the HRLPC. The committee recommends that best practices be employed during 
construction of the trail and would like to be included in planning for trail elements (benches etc…). 
They further recommend that the entire trail surface be “at-grade board walk” instead of stone dust, 
due to concerns about potential erosion and flooding. 
 
Staff Comments. Town Staff has reviewed the application and has met with the applicant to review any 
issues raised. They include: 
 

• Hockanum River Linear Park Trail. Staff and the Applicant are working to finalize construction 
phasing, easement language, and maintenance details for the greenway extension. A condition 
of approval with be drafted to this effect. 

• Emergency Access. The Fire Marshal identified the need for an emergency access drive (second 
point of access). The Site plan shows an access drive along the southern boundary connecting to 
Trail Run Dr. The applicant has agreed to construct and provided gated, emergency access. 

• Internal traffic movement. Staff has asked the applicant to review the internal termini of the 
private streets to ensure the internal system is code compliant and allows for safe and efficient 
turning movements, especially for public vehicles and trucks. The applicant has responded with 
revisions, currently under review by Staff.  

• The Town Engineer and Zoning enforcement Officer have identified no technical outstanding 
issues. 

 
 



PZC 2021-19, Village at Naek Road 6 
January 20, 2022 
 
 

8-24 Review  
 
The Applicant proposes both an incremental dedication of a portion of Naek Rd. and a significant trail 
easement with trail and small parking area. It makes sense to facilitate an 8-24 review simultaneously 
with the site plan and special permit elements.  
 
State statue declares:  
 

“No municipal agency or legislative body shall (1) locate, accept, abandon, widen, narrow or 
extend any street, bridge, parkway or other public way, (2) locate, relocate, substantially 
improve, acquire land for, abandon, sell or lease any airport, park, playground, school or other 
municipally owned property or public building, (3) locate or extend any public housing, 
development, redevelopment or urban renewal project, or (4) locate or extend public utilities and 
terminals for water, sewerage, light, power, transit and other purposes, until the proposal to 
take such action has been referred to the commission for a report.”  

 
The intent in this consideration is for the Commission to review the proposed action and issue a finding 
on its consistency or lack thereof with the Plan of Conservation and Development.   

 
Objective 8.1 in the Plan of Conservation and Development (POCD) strongly supports the expansion of 
Vernon’s local Trail network (p. 63). Objective 3.2 speaks of infrastructure improvement in support of 
economic development and Land Use Goal (p. 47). 
 
The aforementioned improvements are consistent with the newly adopted POCD. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff continues to work with the Applicant on the issues identified in this report. An update will be 
provided at the time of the public hearing. 
 
Note: Draft Conditions and Motions will be provided under separate cover. 
 
GKM 
 
Attachments 



From: Sitler, Martin
To: McGregor, George
Cc: Watt, Amy
Subject: RE: Naek Village trail
Date: Friday, January 7, 2022 11:13:34 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Hi George,
I have a few concerns that I would like to be sure are addressed as a part of the approval process.

1. We request that the TOV Staff have the opportunity to review & approve the detailed
construction plans of the trail & boardwalk.

2. The applicant shall maintain the trail within the boundry lines of their property.
3. The plans show a parking area at the end of Naek Road, it needs to be specified who shall

maintain this area and who can use it.
We can discuss further after our meeting Wednesday, thank you.

Marty Sitler
 

Marty Sitler, CPRP, CPSI & AFO
Director, Vernon Parks & Recreation Department
860-870-3520
www.vernonrec.org

 

From: McGregor, George 
Sent: Thursday, January 6, 2022 12:22 PM
To: Sitler, Martin <MSitler@vernon-ct.gov>
Subject: Naek Village trail
 

Marty:
 
See attached fyi. Working with Naek development on trail connection. I
think we had spoke of this last April when it was going through the IWC.
 
My plan is to draft a condition where they construct as a part of their
approval.
 

mailto:MSitler@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:awatt@vernon-ct.gov
http://www.vernonrec.org/



I do not have a written easement yet submitted by them but wanted to
make sure you are looped in.
 
George K. McGregor, AICP
Town Planner
Town of Vernon
55 West Main Street
Vernon, CT. 06066-3291
Phone: (860) 870-3640
Mobile: (860) 336-1846
 



 

 

 

 

TOWN OF VERNON 
Hockanum River Linear Park Committee 

14 Park Place 

Vernon, CT 06066                                  
  

                January 12 2022 
      
 
To: Vernon Planning & Zoning Commission     
 
 From: Vernon Hockanum River Linear Park Committee 
  Ann Letendre, Chairman; George Arthur, Don Bellingham 
 
 Re:  Application PZ-2021-19, The Village at Naek Rd 
 
 The site abuts the Hockanum River and encompasses an area that is located within 
 the Hockanum River Linear Park Master Plan, specifically in Trail Segment One, as 
 shown on the attached map.    

 
We have reviewed the site plan prepared by Gardner & Peterson Associates for this 
application.  The purpose of our review is to ensure that the planned continuous 
trail and linear park along the Hockanum River is incorporated into the site plan, 
and that the plan meets the broader goals of river park planning.  
These goals are: 
  

- provision for public accessibility and enjoyment of the river environment 
- conservation of the riparian area along the river  
- protection of river water quality.           
 

 
We find that the site plans incorporate a trail along the river, a conservation 
easement and public access, as follows:   

 
1. Provision of a conservation/trail easement along the eastern side of the 

Hockanum River, to be deeded in favor of the Town of Vernon.   
  The easement shown on the site plan averages approximately 100  
  feet in width  from the edge of the river, and extends approximately 
  1700 feet along the length of the river (about 4 acres).      

 
2. Installation of a walking trail approximately 1700 feet long along the 

entire section of the river on the site, including two boardwalk spans 
(approx 50 ft each) across wet meadow areas. 

  



 

 

3. Public access to the river walking trail with a parking area for 
approximately 8 vehicles at the end of Naek Road, and a short connector 
trail to the river trail.  

   
4. Water quality protections, including (1) no activity in wetlands, and (2) 

on-site treatment of stormwater runoff from new construction only, 
through use of rain gardens, ground infiltration and constructed drainage 
basins.  

 
  
 We submit these additional recommendations related to the trail construction for 
 your consideration and your inclusion in the list of permit approval stipulations:  

         
1. We strongly recommend that best practices for trail construction be 

employed such that impacts to wetlands and water quality are minimized. 
 

2. We recommend that the trail surface be an at-grade boardwalk for the 
trail sections that are alongside wetlands or that are within flood lines. 
This surface is the safest for public use and least-damaging to the river 
environment.   

 
a. As a result of high usage and wet soils, trail erosion in this river 

area is an issue. The high usage comes from residents in the large, 
apartments complexes that abut river.     
    

b. Stonedust surfaces should NOT be installed on trails alongside 
wetlands areas or in areas prone to flooding.  Our experience is 
that, during high rainfall events, stonedust is washed away in flood 
prone areas and on steeply sloped areas.  
   

3. We ask that the HRLP Committee be included in trail construction 
planning, especially in regard to trail surface and trail amenities.  We 
noted that amenities such as viewing areas and benches are cited in the 
permit application, but we don’t see them notated on the site plans.  

 
Lastly, we note that three documents/reports are not yet available for our review.  
The HRLP Committee will provide supplemental comment on any trail-related or 
easement-related recommendations in these documents.  The reports are: 
  - Terms & conditions of the conservation easement 
  - Town Engineer’s Report 
  - Report from the North Central Conservation District 

  
 

We thank you for consideration of our comments.   



From: Ann Letendre
To: McGregor, George
Cc: Sitler, Martin
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] HRLP Committee input for Naek
Date: Thursday, January 13, 2022 6:47:33 PM

George -
We may need to talk about this.  We presumed, perhaps incorrectly, that that
developer is proposing to construct a stonedust trail along the entire length of the
river. We presumed that because there is a drawing for stonedust construction on the
last page of the site plans - and we couldn't find any locations labeled for use of
stonedust, so presumed the trail.  
 
There should definitely not be stonedust construction along the low wetlands areas
(about 195 - 197' topo).  So yes, if developer is proposing to actually construct a
stonedust trail - then "at-grade' boardwalk is a better alternative - and that's what
we'd like to see.  I think Marty would agree.  Stonedust would just get washed away. 
The only section that might be stonedust is the short access trail near the parking
area in the cul de sac.  
 
"At-grade" is not the same as the type of boardwalk construction as the type needed
to cross wet marsh areas.  The two 50-ft sections on the plan cross wet meadows
and would require pier construction. There are specific pier products that limit
wetlands impacts - so it's important that we know that detail also.  At Pleasantview a
product called "diamond piers" was used for some sections. 
 
"At-grade" is pretty simple - you just lay stringers on the ground with crossboards,
and set with rebar.   More importantly, it doesn't require digging equipment and
carting in loads of stonedust, laying a base, etc.  There is much less ground
disturbance. 
 
Pleasantview trail just downstream has the two boardwalk types.
 
But - if the developer intended to just leave the trail as bare ground, that's a problem
too in that area.  Based on experience with Pleasantview - same terrain, same soils -
the bare-ground trail sections got eroded very quickly as trail usage increased, and
we now find that we need to install at-grade along the remaining bare-ground trail
sections that don't have boardwalk.  Marty has submitted a grant to do that.  
 
Bottom line, it's important to define these details now - as you have said.  Exactly
what does developer intend to do, what can we expect him to do?  Also - we note
that the application says "benches, with scenic view". We don't see that detail or
location on the site plan.  It's important to know up front the location, specific
products intended, especially if Town is going to take on the maintenance.  Also - we
need to define who is going to do the signage. 
 
Thank you.  
Ann  

Sent from AOL Desktop
In a message dated 1/13/2022 3:54:04 PM Eastern Standard Time, GMcGregor@vernon-
ct.gov writes:
 

mailto:annletendr@aol.com
mailto:GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:MSitler@vernon-ct.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://discover.aol.com/products-and-services/aol-desktop-for-windows__;!!K_vE5lA!68NiGtrcxTKc2JBVSIAOx0b99hYjKU55efoYQcPVQUYuoXgPHGYilx4lAvRQVx8LpTgyXSE$


Ann:

 

To clarify please for me: are there specific locations the HRLPC wants
to see additional boardwalk? Without specificity it is difficult to provide
guidance to the applicant or to the Commission.

 

Based on the language you are using it appears you are asking for the
entire segment to be boardwalk, as the segment is either in the riparian
corridor, adjacent to wetlands, or in the floodplain.

 

Please advise.

 

Thanks.

 

From: Ann Letendre <annletendr@aol.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2022 12:16 PM
To: McGregor, George <GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] HRLP Committee input for Naek

 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender
before clicking on any links or attachments.

Good morning, George. 

Attached is input from the HRLP Committee on the Naek Rd application. We
haven't seen the terms and conditions of the easement, and didn't have Town
Engineer or NCCD inputs, so these comments do not reflect anything that
might be forthcoming in those documents, but I wanted to get it to you if you
were sending out packets.   If those documents are available in the coming
week, we'll provide additional comment if needed on any trail-related points
that may be in those documents.

 

Of concern is the type of surface that would be used for the trail.  Stonedust
should not be used in the river riparian area, next to the wetlands, and near



the floodline.  Based on experience in other nearby trail areas along the river,
at-grade boardwalk is best.  

Thanks, George. 

Ann 

 

Sent from AOL Desktop

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/discover.aol.com/products-and-services/aol-desktop-for-windows__;!!K_vE5lA!-LVz-xZrFQN1tMz0pcD4tWGtyvSu7q4TXqUyjbZerUZGjrPBFL1un1RWH4Q-6Bqb1k4zaiw$


From: Ryniewicz, Dwight
To: Eric Peterson; McGregor, George; Smith, David
Cc: Schambach, Jeff; Carlson, Anne-Marie
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road
Date: Friday, December 10, 2021 4:16:33 PM

Good afternoon Eric.
We have reviewed the PDF's you sent to Public Works. In regard to refuse & recycle pickup we have concerns over the
widths of the roads and the way the roads terminate. This would require large tandem axle trucks to back up excessively.
Our routes are designed to avoid backing up trucks as much as possible for safety reasons. The roads appear to be narrow
as well which creates an unsafe condition if cars are parked in the road.

This development seems like a good candidate for dumpsters. Have you given consideration to this.

Best Regards.
Dwight Ryniewicz
Director
Town of Vernon
860-870-3500

-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Peterson <epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 9, 2021 2:33 PM
To: McGregor, George <GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov>; Ryniewicz, Dwight <dryniewicz@vernon-ct.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road

Hi Dwight:
I am working on a new multifamily project in Vernon located at the end of Naek Road.  The project will consist of 70 new
dwellings.  George McGregor asked me to reach out to you to make sure that you would be ok with regular garbage
services for these units.  Each unit will have its own driveway that terminates at a garage.  I have attached an overall site
plan and a architectural rendering so you get an idea of the type of development we are talking about.  I expect it will be
similar (but larger) than what was recently developed by the Ken Boynton on Dart Hill Road.

Please give me a call if you have any questions.  I would be happy to stop by your office if need be.

Thank you,

Eric Peterson, P.E., P.L.S.
Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC
178 Hartford Turnpike
Tolland, Connecticut 06084
(860) 871-0808
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.GardnerPeterson.com__;!!K_vE5lA!_N479kne4egONWTOEGgP6nlEbFs2YgLz_J-
6Z1I9rN2U1kDPjyGGXlQ5UEObaJk_eEcfST8$
 

-----Original Message-----
From: McGregor, George
Sent: Thursday, December 09, 2021 2:18 PM
To: Eric Peterson <epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road

Can you reach out to Dwight, public works director to make sure Town is ok w regular garbage service for these units?

-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Peterson <epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 9, 2021 1:29 PM
To: McGregor, George <GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road

mailto:dryniewicz@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com
mailto:GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:DSmith@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:jschambach@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:acarlson@vernon-ct.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.GardnerPeterson.com__;!!K_vE5lA!_N479kne4egONWTOEGgP6nlEbFs2YgLz_J-6Z1I9rN2U1kDPjyGGXlQ5UEObaJk_eEcfST8$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.GardnerPeterson.com__;!!K_vE5lA!_N479kne4egONWTOEGgP6nlEbFs2YgLz_J-6Z1I9rN2U1kDPjyGGXlQ5UEObaJk_eEcfST8$


I was expecting to have regular pickup at the end of each driveway and I thought the patios could be over the setback line
because they are not considered structures.

Both the same as Boynton's project on Dart Hill Road.

Eric Peterson, P.E., P.L.S.
Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC
178 Hartford Turnpike
Tolland, Connecticut 06084
(860) 871-0808
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.GardnerPeterson.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrA
AFp7XZpyUmAKIqJ7LrrAMHmYutBISxKIhZdRkN7ySEq3zv55xhxqNDMC6EtC89nHkU$
 

-----Original Message-----
From: McGregor, George
Sent: Thursday, December 09, 2021 1:07 PM
To: Eric Peterson <epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com>
Subject: Fwd: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road

From Andy see below

George K. McGregor, aicp
Office: 860-870-3640

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Marchese, Andrew" <amarchese@vernon-ct.gov>
Date: December 9, 2021 at 12:04:08 PM EST
To: "McGregor, George" <GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road

?

  1.  The dumpster pads are not shown on the proposed site plan.

  1.  Some of the rear patios are over the set back lines

From: McGregor, George
Sent: Thursday, December 9, 2021 12:00 PM
To: Marchese, Andrew <amarchese@vernon-ct.gov>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road

I had him try to simplify. What would you add/what else do you want to see?

From: Eric Peterson
<epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com<mailto:epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com>>
Sent: Thursday, December 9, 2021 11:59 AM
To: McGregor, George
<GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov<mailto:GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov>>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: Naek Road

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or
attachments.

George:

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.GardnerPeterson.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrA
mailto:epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com
mailto:GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov


How does this plan fit your request?  If it is what you were looking for then I will drop off two copies for you.

Eric Peterson, P.E., P.L.S.
Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC
178 Hartford Turnpike
Tolland, Connecticut 06084
(860) 871-0808
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.GardnerPeterson.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrA
AFp7XZpyUmAKIqJ7LrrAMHmYutBISxKIhZdRkN7ySEq3zv55xhxqNDMC6EtC89nHkU$
<https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.gardnerpeterso
n.com/__;!!K_vE5lA!7hWkVGnWa77sl5TKvZfzGzNasOK6mhiy9etTi77YbHq8rA5XRjeHurgmr
415W7OC2cK1RqI$>

[https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://ipmcdn.avast.com/images/icons/icon-enve
lope-tick-green-avg-v1.png__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrAAFp7XZpyUmAKIqJ7LrrAMHmYutBISxKI
hZdRkN7ySEq3zv55xhxqNDMC6EtNv91acY$ ]<
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.avg.com/email-signature?utm_medium=ema
il&utm_source=link&utm_campaign=sig-email&utm_content=emailclient__;!!K_vE5l
A!7hWkVGnWa77sl5TKvZfzGzNasOK6mhiy9etTi77YbHq8rA5XRjeHurgmr415W7OCBTG30Go$>

Virus-free.
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.avg.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrAAFp7XZpyUmAK
IqJ7LrrAMHmYutBISxKIhZdRkN7ySEq3zv55xhxqNDMC6Et4irlQQQ$
<https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.avg.com/email-signature?ut
m_medium=email&utm_source=link&utm_campaign=sig-email&utm_content=emailclien
t__;!!K_vE5lA!7hWkVGnWa77sl5TKvZfzGzNasOK6mhiy9etTi77YbHq8rA5XRjeHurgmr415W7
OCBTG30Go$>

--
This email has been checked for viruses by AVG.
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.avg.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrAAFp7XZpyUmA
KIqJ7LrrAMHmYutBISxKIhZdRkN7ySEq3zv55xhxqNDMC6Et1l-Iop0$

--
This email has been checked for viruses by AVG.
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.avg.com__;!!K_vE5lA!_N479kne4egONWTOEGgP6nlEbFs2YgLz_J-
6Z1I9rN2U1kDPjyGGXlQ5UEObaJk_X7uvyaU$

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.GardnerPeterson.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrA
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://ipmcdn.avast.com/images/icons/icon-enve
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.avg.com/email-signature?utm_medium=ema
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.avg.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrAAFp7XZpyUmAK
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.avg.com__;!!K_vE5lA!5jGrAAFp7XZpyUmA
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.avg.com__;!!K_vE5lA!_N479kne4egONWTOEGgP6nlEbFs2YgLz_J-6Z1I9rN2U1kDPjyGGXlQ5UEObaJk_X7uvyaU$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.avg.com__;!!K_vE5lA!_N479kne4egONWTOEGgP6nlEbFs2YgLz_J-6Z1I9rN2U1kDPjyGGXlQ5UEObaJk_X7uvyaU$






From: McGregor, George
To: Gregory McCracken
Cc: Marchese, Andrew; Smith, David; Gately, Shaun; Sitler, Martin; Ryniewicz, Dwight; Eric Peterson; Perry, Craig
Subject: Town Planning Comments PZC 2021-19
Date: Monday, December 20, 2021 2:11:00 PM

Mr. McCracken
 
Please find my initial review comments below. As I get other Town
departmental reviews, I will forward along. I think we should plan to
have a meeting sometime around the later part of the first week of
January to discuss any issues raised. These are in no particular order:
 

1. Sidewalks. I see a sidewalk is depicted on one side of Naek Rd and
essentially half the cul-de-sac. I realize there are no sidewalks
currently to connect to on Talcottville but as we build our network
in Vernon, these connections are critical. Therefore, I’d ask that
you consider committing to constructing an off premise segment
along the frontage of Mr. Hamid’s adjacent property to the north.
This gets residents of the proposed apartments all the way to the
Talcottville corridor where buses and other transit options exist.

 
2. Hockanum linear park trail. This is a great addition to our network,

thanks. I think we need to finalize the timing of construction,
whether the trail should be contained within a trail or conservation
easement,  town review of the proposed construction materials,
proposed materials etc..When we craft the condition I just want to
be clear on whose is responsible for what and when.
 

3. Trail parking area. The 8 spaces shown on gravel I assume are
intended for trail access to the public? Does the applicant intend to
own the property or are you asking to dedicate that area to the
Town along with that small cul-de-sac area?
 

mailto:GMcGregor@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:GMcCracken@jwrb.com
mailto:amarchese@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:DSmith@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:sgately@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:MSitler@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:dryniewicz@vernon-ct.gov
mailto:epeterson@gardnerpeterson.com
mailto:cperry@vernon-ct.gov


4. Parking. I do want to make sure that parking is adequate, since you
are proposing the minimum. Are the surface spaces intended for
guests/visitors? In my experience often these townhouse style
units have little storage and the garages become storage areas,
making parking challenging. Please review.
 

5. A number of the patios shown encroach into the required yards. I
do understand there is precedent allowing this (see Boynton Dart
Hill) under section 3.30. I suggest a patio detail be added so we can
consider and discuss.
 

6. Section 4.24.4.1.7-PDZ requires consideration of bike/ped
facilities… “shall provide for pedestrian and bicycle access…” Please
consider bicycle racks and sidewalks extensions. Bike racks in the
public parking area and/or on site might be a good idea.
 

7. Section 4.24.4.3.15.9—The PDZ requires 3 amenities when
providing less than the required yard. The trail, for sure meets one.
Please confirm how the project meets the intent of this section.
For a fairly dense project there does seem to be a lack of place-
making community amenities beyond the trail (which is great
public asset). But, there are no community gathering spots, play
areas, vistas, central open space, etc…
 

8. Please be certain to reach out to the police department and Chief
Kelley to ensure you are on the January agenda of the traffic
Authority.
 

9. FYI I am working with Shaun to make sure you are on the DRC
agenda for January 5, 2022.

 



 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE 

TOWN PLANNER 
 

14 PARK PLACE, VERNON, CT 06066-3291 
Tel:  (860) 870-3667 

E-mail:  gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 
 

TOWN OF VERNON 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Town of Vernon Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
FROM:  George K. McGregor, AICP, Town Planner 
 
SUBJECT: CGS 8-24 Referral – 36 Cubles Dr. 
 
DATE:  January 20, 2022 
 
 
The Town of Vernon has requested a CGS 8-24 referral for the following property: 
 
  Location     Parcel ID 
  36 Cubles Dr.     52-140Q-00004 
   
The Town is considering the potential sale and, or disposition of this property. The parcel is currently 
undeveloped with no environmental features present. 
 
State statue declares:  
 

"No municipal agency or legislative body shall (1) locate, accept, abandon, widen, narrow or 
extend any street, bridge, parkway or other public way, (2) locate, relocate, substantially 
improve, acquire land for, abandon, sell or lease any airport, park, playground, school or other 
municipally owned property or public building, (3) locate or extend any public housing, 
development, redevelopment or urban renewal project, or (4) locate or extend public utilities and 
terminals for water, sewerage, light, power, transit and other purposes, until the proposal to 
take such action has been referred to the commission for a report."  

 
The intent in this consideration is for the Commission to review the proposed action and issue a finding 
on its consistency or lack thereof with the Plan of Conservation and Development.   
 
The business development policies of the POCD support redevelopment and increasing the tax base. 
Specifically, the POCD emphasizes “promoting redevelopment of vacant buildings and underutilized 
sites” (page 82). 
 
Therefore, this request is consistent with the adopted POCD.   



Town of Vernon, CT

Town of Vernon, CT, Aaron Nash, Town of Vernon

TaxParcelPublishing

Zoning

C

CMFD

HD-I

HD-RC

I

MHP

NR-10

Open Space

PC

PDZ

PDZ-EXT 67

PND

PRD

R-10

R-15

R-22

R-27

R-40

RC

September 20, 2021
0 0.01 0.030.01 mi

0 0.03 0.050.01 km

1:1,000

GIS Dept
Copyright 2020

gmcgregor
Highlight



Town of Vernon, CT

Town of Vernon, CT, Aaron Nash, Town of Vernon

TaxParcelPublishing 2019

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3

September 20, 2021
0 0.01 0.030.01 mi

0 0.03 0.050.01 km

1:1,000

GIS Dept
Copyright 2020






	PZC meeting 1-20-22 Agenda and Packet
	PZC  Agenda for 1-20-22
	Draft Minutes
	PZC Draft Minutes 12-16-21
	Application for Receipt
	PZ 2022-01 Application
	Application for Receipt
	Application
	8926-II 12-28-2021
	Application 1
	PZ 2021-19 Applicant Packet for Hearing
	Naek Spec Perm & Site Plan App Signed 11-30-2021
	Site Plan Set 11-30-2021
	5768B 1-SitePlan (1)
	5768B 2-OverallSitePlan (1)
	5768B 3-ESCP (1)
	5768B 4-ESCP (1)
	5768B 5-Grading (1)
	5768B 6-Grading (1)
	5768B 7-Utilities (1)
	5768B 8-Utilities (1)
	5768B 9-Landscaping (1)
	5768B 10-Landscaping (1)
	5768B-DET 11-Naek-Details (1)
	5768B-DET 12-Naek-Details (1)
	5768B-DET 13-Naek-Details (1)
	5768B-DET 14-Naek-Details (1)

	Fiscal Impact Study SP 11-30-2021
	Village at Naek Road TIAS Report - Nov 21
	All Traffic Figures
	EX AM_Nov 21
	EX PM_Nov 21

	The Village at Naek Road 10-04-2021 Architecture
	Sheets
	A-000 - TITLE SHEET
	A-001 - 2 UNIT BUILDING
	A-002 - 4 UNIT BUILDING
	A-003 - 4 UNIT BUILDING
	A-004 - ABDUL WAY
	A-005 - NADIA WAY
	A-006 - SOFFIA WAY
	A-101 - 2 UNIT PLANS
	A-102 - 4 UNIT PLANS
	A-103 - 6 UNIT PLANS
	A-201 - 2 UNIT ELEVATIONS
	A-201a - 2 UNIT PERSPECTIVES
	A-202 - 4 UNIT ELEVATIONS
	A-202a - 4 UNIT PERSPECTIVES
	A-203 - 6 UNIT ELEVATIONS
	A-203a - 6 UNIT PERSPECTIVES
	A-301 - TYPICAL SECTIONS



	Staff Comments
	Staff memornadum with referral attachments 1-20-22
	PZC 2021-19 Staff Memorandum
	Parks & Rec Comments 1-7-22
	HRLP Comment PZ  Naek Jan 2022
	Letendre email 1-12-21
	Public works and Zoning Comments Village at Naek 12-10-21
	NCCD referral ES - The Village at Naek Road - Vernon - PZ-2021-19
	Town Planning Comments PZC 2021-19


	Staff Memo to PZC 11-18-21
	Combined Maps 36 Cubles
	36 Cubles Zoning
	36 Cubles
	TOV Land at 36 Cubles Drive




